


CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”)
OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK
EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been established as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a high investment
risk may be attached. In particular, companies may list on GEM with neither a track record of profitability
nor any obligation to forecast future profitability. Furthermore, there may be risks arising out of the
emerging nature of companies listed on GEM and the business sectors or countries in which the companies
operate. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and
should make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and
other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated
investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM
may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no
assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

The principal means of information dissemination on GEM is publication on the internet website operated
by the Stock Exchange. Listed companies are not generally required to issue paid announcements in
gazetted newspapers. Accordingly, prospective investors should note that they need to have access to
the GEM website in order to obtain up-to-date information on GEM listed issuers.

The Stock Exchange takes no responsibility for the contents of this report, makes no representation as to its
accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in
reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of Creative Energy Solutions Holdings Limited (“Creative Energy” or the
“Company”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the
purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The directors, having made all reasonable enquiries,
confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief: (1) the information contained in this report is accurate
and complete in all material respects and not misleading; (2) there are no other matters the omission of which
would make any statement in this report misleading; and (3) all opinions expressed in this report have been arrived
at after due and careful consideration and are founded on bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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of Saving Development Co., Ltd.

4/F., Block 17,

Juyuanzhou, 618 Jinshan Avenue

Jinshan Industrial Area

Fuzhou, Fujian

China
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Fujian Creative New Era Technological Control Ltd.
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HIGHLIGHTS

• For the year ended 30th June, 2004, turnover of the Group

was approximately RMB59,505,000, representing a decrease

of approximately 38.7% as compared with last year.

• Profit attributable to shareholders decreased to approximately

RMB3,840,000, representing a decrease of approximately

83.0% as compared with last year.

• Basic earnings per share decreased approximately 83.7% as

compared with last year to 0.89 cents.

• The Board has resolved not to recommend the payment of

final dividend for the year ended 30th June, 2004.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), I am pleased to

present the annual report of Creative Energy Solutions Holdings

Limited (“Creative Energy” or the “Company”) and its subsidiaries

(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 30th June, 2004.

RESULTS

For the year ended 30th June, 2004, the Group recorded results

with a consolidated turnover of RMB59,505,000 (2003: RMB

97,134,000) and the gross profit ratio was 62.8%, representing a

decrease of approximately 2.1% when compared with the

corresponding period last year. The consolidated profit attributable

to shareholders was approximately RMB3,840,000 (2003:

RMB 22,613,000), representing a decrease of approximately 83.0%

when compared to the corresponding period last year. Basic

earnings per share was RMB0.89 cents (2003: RMB 5.45 cents).

DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved not to recommend the payment of final

dividend for the year ended 30th June, 2004 (2003: Nil). No interim

dividend was declared for the six months ended 31st December,

2003 (2002: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group, one of the leading energy efficiency technologies retrofit

solution providers in the PRC, is principally engaged in the design,

management and implementation of Energy Management System

(“EMS”) Solutions with the provision of professional consultancy

services, focusing on the central air-conditioning, public district

heating systems and industrial water circulation retrofit projects

including commercial buildings, public district heating systems and

industrial water circulation systems in the PRC in order to reduce

the energy consumption.
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The Group’s EMS Solutions – “SAVIN 2000” series and other related

energy saving products rendered satisfactory results. The Group

has successfully consolidated the markets of “SAVIN 2000 I” in

key cities of the PRC namely Fuzhou, Chongqing, Hefei, Nanjing,

Hangzhou, Shanghai, Shenzhen, Tianjin, Beijing and Qingdao and

entered into construction contracts with a number of property

developers in Hong Kong. The Group has entered into eight

contracts with Chinachem Group regarding the installation of

“SAVIN 2000 I” for Chinachem Golden Plaza, Fanling Town Centre

and other six commercial buildings under the Chinachem Group.

In addition, the Group entered into a contract with Kerry Group

for the installation of “SAVIN 2000 I” in Shanghai Kerry Centre.

Along with its increasing brand awareness, the Group has acquired

the project contract for the installation of “SAVIN 2000 I” in Bank

of China Tower of Bank of China Group in Shanghai, the PRC.

The Group will continue its efforts in the development of “SAVIN

2000 III” and related technologies in order to expand its scope of

business. The Group has been engaged in the negotiation of

adoption of “SAVIN 2000 III” with some large-scaled industrial

units, for example cement plants, power plants, chemical plants,

refineries and steel mills and sound progress was attained.

During the year review, the Group acquired 75% interests of Fujian

Shenzhou Electron Information Technology Co., Ltd. (currently

known as Fujian Creative New Era Control Technology Co., Ltd.,

abbreviated as “Fujian New Era”) at a consideration of

HK$60,000,000. Such acquisition brought the Group with the

patented products of the central hot/cold water equipment under

the brand name of “'(”, which are of promising future in both

domestic and international markets, as well as the newly developed

technology for energy saving management solutions compatible to

“SAVIN 2000 III”. The integration of the two technologies would

provide more valued-added services in the Group’s energy saving

system, diversify the range of energy saving products for

construction and industrial sectors and increase the market share

of the Group’s energy saving products.
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FUTURE PROSPECTS

Global climate has been adversely affected by the greenhouse

effect and become abnormal in recent years, which aroused the

international awareness of energy conservation and environmental

protection. Industrial and developed countries, such as Japan, have

launched environmental protection policies gradually in order to

reduce the emission of greenhouse gases. It reflected the

tremendous potentials for energy saving products and services in

the world market. With the recent burgeoning economic growth

in the PRC, there is surging demand for natural resources and raw

materials. In addition to the enhancement of the utilisation rate

of major energy consumption products and the improvement of

economic benefit per each unit of energy consumption, the

minimisation of environmental pollution level of energy

consumption has become the foremost mission of enterprises. As

such, it provides enormous business opportunities for the energy

conservation industry.

In the first half of 2004, the national power consumption of the

PRC increased for 16% and the supply and demand of power

remained tense. The power shortage problems were severe in

some provinces during the summer this year and it adversely

affected the production activities of enterprises. Premier of the

State Council, Mr. Wen Jiabao, has stated the importance of energy

conservation and which could be achieved through the

implementation of all-out power saving campaign in various

industries and units, provision of public lighting and establishment

of energy conservation society. According to the statistics in 2002,

it is revealed that China was the world’s second largest energy

consumer, representing 11% of global energy consumption, and

yet one of the many countries notorious for energy inefficiency.

In addition to the improvement of economic benefit of energy

consumption and development of renewable energy, energy

conservation is a definite solution to the domestic power shortage

problem. As a result, energy conservation technologies become

popular among provincial governments and domestic enterprises

and their requirement on related product quality is escalating.
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With the burgeoning economic growth in the PRC, there is surging

demand for energy. On the other hand, the State has actively

implemented energy conservation policies including imposing energy

consumption restrictions on a number of public utilities. The Group

has initiated the cooperation agreement negotiating with major

international airports in Sichuan Province, the PRC, and entered a

mature stage. Such agreement consists of the adoption of the

Group’s energy saving products for the purpose of the shorten of

engine cooling period and uplift of maximum cooling temperature

so as to lower the aggregate energy consumption.

Another significant development of the Group was the strategic

pact entered into with Henan Construction Investment Company

c`ç«�yvZ[  (“Henan Construction”) for the purpose of

fully stepping in the energy saving and environmental protection

retrofit projects of enterprises under Henan Construction. At the

same time, the Group also concluded an energy efficiency

management system contract with Tong Li Cement Co., Ltd. dV

®ïXYZ[  (“Tong Li Cement”) under Henan Construction at

an aggregate value over RMB12,000,000. It is expected that an

annual cost saving of over RMB4,000,000 on energy consumption

for the cement plant can be achieved. It is the first national energy

saving project, with a total planning and control of energy

efficiency, targeting the 10,000-volt electrical machinery system

used by industries demanding high electricity consumption. The

Group is also the only company, which provides industrial

enterprises with total energy efficiency planning and implementation

of high/low voltage electrical machinery traction system. It is

expected that the success of such project would serve as a key

model for the industries demanding high electricity consumption

nationwide to improve the energy saving system and to thoroughly

solve the problems of an excessive consumption, thus consolidating

the Group’s market position in the energy management system for

industries demanding high electricity consumption.

In regard to the expansion of Hong Kong market, the Group is

approaching the final stage of negotiation concerning the energy

saving technological cooperation pact with a local five-star hotel

under one of the largest hotel groups. In regard to the overseas

market, the Group is actively engaged in exploring the market of

the Philippines.
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Looking ahead, the Group will spare no efforts in seeking potential

target clients, expanding the client base and exploring overseas

markets to enhance the profitability of the Group on one hand.

On the other hand, the Group will proactively enhance and upgrade

the overall efficiency of our management and employees,

strengthen the techniques of R&D and efforts in enhancing the

sales and marketing capacity. Leveraging on our refined products,

flexible sales strategies, well-experienced management and the

concerted efforts of distinguished and dedicated employees the

Group is determined to become the top EMS provider in the PRC.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, I would like to take this opportunity to

express our appreciation to the management and staff for their

dedication and contribution to the Group throughout the year. I

also take this opportunity to express our sincere thanks to our

shareholders, investors and customers for their continued

encouragement and support.

Shum Fong Chung

Chairman

Hong Kong, 21st September, 2004
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Turnover of the Group for the year ended 30th June, 2004

amounted to approximately RMB59,505,000, with approximately

38.7% decrease as compared with that of 2003. The sales of

energy management systems (“EMS”) solutions “SAVIN 2000 I”,

our flapship product, amounted to approximately RMB55,185,000

during the year, representing an increase of approximately 68.5%

as compared with that of 2003 and accounted for approximately

92.7% of the total turnover of the Group. “SAVIN 2000 III”, the

EMS Solutions designated for industrial water circulation system,

received a satisfactory market response and recorded a turnover of

approximately RMB3,396,000, which accounted for 5.7% of the

Group’s total turnover. During the year under review, a total of

176 projects with aggregate project value of approximately

RMB64,205,000 were completed.

During the year under review, Hong Kong and the PRC have

completely walked out the shadow of the negative impacts brought

by the outbreak of Severe Acute Respiratory Syndrome (“SARS”)

early last year, coupled with the implementation of “Mainland and

Hong Kong Closer Economic Partnership Arrangement” agreement,

various business conferences, exhibitions, sales and marketing,

promotions and investment activities became more frequent. The

rapid development of domestic industrial and commercial sectors,

the ever-increasing consumption level and the economic and social

development have heightened the demand for energy. Under the

circumstance of under-supply, the domestic energy shortage

problem persisted. With such background, attractive business

opportunities for the Group’s EMS Solutions “SAVIN 2000” series

and other energy saving products were generated. Notwithstanding

the aggressive enhancement of production technology and the

dedicated effort in exploring sales channels, the Group’s overall

turnover decreased since the Group is subject to government

policies, seasonality and the need of further market development

of certain products.
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The EMS Solutions “SAVIN 2000” series and other energy saving
products of the Group rendered satisfactory results, enabling
enterprises with cost saving and profits enhancement.
Consequently, “SAVIN 2000 I” has successfully captured a
significant market share in the PRC, including Fuzhou, Chongqing,
Hefei, Nanjing, Hangzhou, Shanghai, Shenzhen, Tianjin, Beijing
and Qingdao, and also developed the Hong Kong market.
Regarding “SAVIN 2000 II”, as a result of adjustments in
government policies of power consumption structure that affected
its sales, no sales was recorded during the year. Currently, the
Group is promoting another energy saving product “SAVIN 2000
III” gradually in the industrial area and is negotiating the adoption
of this product with some large-scaled industrial units, like cement
plants, power plants, chemical plants, refineries and steel mills.

In view of further expansion of the scope of business, during the
year under review, the Group has acquired 75% interests of Fujian
Shenzhou Electron Information Technology Co., Ltd. (currently
known as Fujian Creative New Era Control Technology Co., Ltd
abbreviated as “Fujian New Era”), whose principal businesses are
the provision of patented technology in high efficiency energy
saving hot/cold water equipments for hotels and the provision of
energy management solutions for industrial enterprises in the PRC,
at a consideration of HK$60,000,000. Such acquisition brought
an immediate return for the Group as the patented products of
the central hot water equipment under the brand name of “'(
” which are enjoying promising future in the domestic and
international markets, as well as the newly developed technology
for energy saving management systems for industrial enterprise
which was named as one of the major upgrading and supporting
technologies of the “Tenth Five Year Plan on Energy Saving and
Comprehensive Use of Energy (Xpf®ÜQ�PxeQ�Í�
ü.ï¥ )” of the PRC Government and which have different
functions but compatible to “SAVIN 2000 III”. The Group believes,
through the integration of the two technologies, it would be able
to provide more value-added services in the Group’s energy saving
system and to diversify the range of energy saving products for
construction and industrial sectors in order to increase the market
share of the Group’s energy saving products. The cooperation
between the Group and Fujian New Era in Sunshine Hotel project
in Shenzhen, the PRC, was completed and commenced operation.
Satisfactory results were achieved. Such project contributed a
contract value amounted to RMB1,930,000 for the Group. Realizing
the satisfactory energy saving results of the central hot water
system retrofit technologies adopted by Sunshine Hotel in
Shenzhen, the other hotels in Shenzhen also intended to adopt
the Group’s technologies. In addition, the Group has successfully
secured a contract value of approximately RMB1,030,000 for
central hot water system retrofit technologies in Shenzhen.
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In addition to the further expansion and consolidation of the

domestic market, the Group also actively explored the overseas

and Hong Kong markets and rendered encouraging results. During

the year, the Group has entered into eight contracts with aggregate

value of approximately HK$6,050,000 with Chinachem Group, one

of the major property developers in Hong Kong, regarding the

installation of “SAVIN 2000 I” for Chinachem Golden Plaza, Fanling

Town Centre and other six commercial buildings under the

Chinachem Group. In addition, the Group entered into a contract

with aggregate value of approximately RMB950,000 with Kerry

Group for the installation of “SAVIN 2000 I” in Shanghai Kerry

Centre. The Group believes that energy management systems are

well-received in the Hong Kong market and its major clients include

China Resources Building, Chinachem Group and Kerry Group. It

further enhances the brand awareness of the Group in both

domestic and international markets and thus facilitates the

possibilities of cooperation with other property developers. Along

with its increasing brand awareness in the Hong Kong market, the

Group has acquired the project contract with aggregate value of

RMB1,560,000 for the installation of “SAVIN 2000 I” in Bank of

China Tower of Bank of China Group in Shanghai, the PRC.

For the enlargement of market share and enhancement of its

leading position, the Group also engaged in the establishment of

joint venture to expand the Southeast Asian markets. The Group

has captured the business opportunities generated from the relative

high ratio of energy expense to national expenditure in the

Philippines and formed a strategic alliance with a local company

for the collaborative promotion of EMS Solutions – “SAVIN 2000 I”.

As the environmental friendly lighting source products achieved

high gross profit margin and received encouraging market response,

the Group will actively develop such products, including Cold

Cathode Fluorescent Lamp (“CCFL”) and energy saving light bulbs

for domestic use, with the aim of establishing cross-selling

marketing strategies and creating synergy effects. The CCFL

achieved a high gross profit margin of 30%, in which the Group

currently holds 14% of the shareholding of such product. The

Group will also actively participate in the large-scale international

lighting exhibition, with the aim to launch the environmental

friendly lighting source products into the international market.
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FUTURE PROSPECTS

The PRC maintains its momentum for economic growth and it is
expected that the demand for energy will remain vigorous. At the
same time, the PRC Government has expressed its concern over
the issue of energy shortage, for which the State Council has
issued a notice on the national resources saving campaign. The
notice urges the nationwide implementation of energy, raw
materials, water resources and land resources saving activities from
2004 to 2006, with an aim to reduce the total energy consumption
for 5% within three years. Such campaign has definitely initiated
a substantial increase in demand from domestic enterprises and
residents for energy saving products and related services, which
will in turn bring about enormous competitive edges to the Group’s
future development.

With a view to further consolidate its leading position and enhance
brand awareness in the industry, the Group endeavors to explore
more business opportunities both in the local and Hong Kong
markets. The Group is also committed to the betterment of the
public and fulfillment of its social functions by way of formation
of strategic cooperation, integration of superior technology of
the existing energy saving market, additional production bases,
expansion of production scale and investment in the research and
development of energy saving products.

In addition to the expansion of sales channels, the Group has put
an emphasis on product quality enhancement for the Group’s
future development. The Group will continue to improve the
product quality and value-added services of “SAVIN 2000” series
and develop various new technologies for value-added energy
efficiency. Besides, the Group will also increase the investment in
research and development to improve the energy saving efficiency
of “SAVIN 2000” series for the purpose of both advocacy of
environmental protection and maximise the benefits from energy
saving systems. The Group is also determined to develop CCFL
products on a series basis and put continual effort in the refinement
of its functions. With its dedication for the past three years, product
series 5W, 7W, 9W, 11W and 13W will soon be awarded the CE
certificate. However, it is unlikely that the product series will be
accepted among the consumers in the PRC market due to its
relatively high production cost at the moment. Thus, the target of
the product series will be the overseas markets at the initial stage
of launch. Currently, overseas markets, for example Japan and
Southeast Asia countries, in negotiation with the Group regarding
the matter of product distribution agent and it is expected that
export to overseas markets can be realised by the end of 2004.
Upon receiving positive response of the products in the overseas
markets, the Group will consider to increase in investment for the
expansion of production scale and reduce cost in a hope to enlarge
its share in other overseas markets.
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The Group is conducting feasibility studies regarding various energy

saving projects so as to expand the scope of business. The studies

are for over 20 types of industrial coverage ranging from dyeing,

polyester, textile, cement, cement and steel, iron and steel, other

refineries, chemical fertilizer, plastic injection, power plant, paper

mill, water-related industries, oil fields, pipelines and etc.

The Group has concluded a 3-year contract with Tong Li Cement

Co., Ltd. dV®ïXYZ[  (“Tong Li Cement”), a domestic large-

scaled cement production enterprise in Henan Province at an

aggregate value of approximately RMB12,000,000 in August 2004.

It is expected that an annual cost saving of over RMB4,000,000 on

energy consumption for Tong Li Cement can be achieved. It is the

first national energy saving project, with a total planning and control

of energy efficiency, targeting the 10,000-volt electrical machinery

system used by industries demanding high electricity consumption.

The Group is also the only company, which provides industrial

enterprises with total energy efficiency planning and implementation

of high/low voltage electrical machinery traction system. It is

expected that the success of such project would serve as a key

model for the industries demanding high electricity consumption

nationwide to improve the energy saving system and to thoroughly

solve the problems of an excessive consumption, thus consolidating

the Group’s market position in the energy management system for

industries demanding high electricity consumption.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Results & Turnover

The Company principally provides a comprehensive range of

services for environmental energy saving (ESCO) including design,

implementation of energy efficiency management solutions system

and retrofit projects with energy performance contract (EPC)

mechanism. The turnover during the year was mainly generated

from the energy efficiency management system of “SAVIN 2000

I” for commercial building and “SAVIN 2000 III” for industrial

water circulation system and the high efficiency energy-saving

hot/cold water equipment in air-conditioning system for hotel.

They together generated the turnover of the Group for the year

ended 30th June, 2004 in the amount of approximately

RMB59,505,000 (2003: RMB97,134,000). Although the Group’s

flapship product, “SAVIN 2000 I”, regained growth by 68.5%

from last year as a result of the threat of SARS having abated in

2004, it could not out-weight the effect of recording no sales

from “SAVIN 2000 II” due to the adjustment of policy in the

government’s power consumption structure and thus a decrease

of approximately 38.7% in Group’s turnover was reflected in 2004

as compared with last year. The profit attributable to shareholders

of the Group and earnings per share for the year ended 30th

June, 2004 were approximately RMB3,840,000 (2003:

RMB22,613,000) and RMB0.89 cents (2003: RMB5.45 cents)

respectively. In comparing the corresponding year ended 30th

June, 2003, the decrease in the profit attributable to shareholders

and earnings per share of 83.0% and 83.7% was reflected.

Gross Profit

The gross profit of the Group decreased by approximately 40%

from approximately RMB62,378,000 in 2003 to RMB37,374,000

in 2004. The gross profit ratio slightly decreased to 62.8% in

2004 from 64.2% in 2003.
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Distribution Costs

Distribution costs decreased to approximately RMB8,333,000 in

2004 in comparing to approximately RMB12,123,000 in 2003. The

major cost items as advertising and promotion expenses of

approximately RMB747,000 (2003: RMB5,719,000) and the

travelling expenses of approximately RMB1,373,000 (2003:

RMB1,918,000) showed a substantial reduction for the year ended

30th June, 2004. The staff salaries increased by RMB1,185,000 to

RMB2,741,000 in comparing to last year was due to relative higher

salary adopted for Hong Kong subsidiaries.

Administrative and Other Operating Expenses

Administrative and other operating expenses slightly decreased

to approximately RMB23,987,000 in 2004 as compared to

RMB24,096,000 in 2003. Administrative and other operating

expenses included mainly research & development costs, operating

lease rentals, staff salaries, depreciation & amortisation, legal &

professional fees and travelling expenses. The research &

development costs amounted to approximately RMB462,000

(2003: RMB32,000); operating lease-rentals of buildings to

approximately RMB2,285,000 (2003: RMB2,415,000); staff salaries

to approximately RMB5,301,000 (2003: RMB4,850,000);

depreciation & amortisation to approximately RMB7,835,000 (2003:

RMB5,443,000); legal & professional fees to approximately

RMB1,021,000 (2003: RMB2,614,000) and travelling expenses to

approximately RMB631,000 (2003: RMB484,000).

The substantial increase of depreciation and amortisation for this

year was mainly derived from the acquisition of China Meijia

Education Holdings Limited on 23rd March, 2004 which gave rise

to the amortisation of goodwill for RMB2,521,000 for the year

under review.

Except for the development of overseas market, there was no

major expansion and establishment occurred in the PRC. A set of

more stringent cost control measures was put into place by the

Directors to keep expenses spending in a most effective way

throughout the year.
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Staff Number

A breakdown of the number of staff of the Group by functions as

at the years ended 30th June, 2004 and 2003 is set out below:

Ò'lÖ

Number of staff

º»»¼½ jkkoÜ

)* +, -. /0 !" $Î �ï

2004 2003

Beijing Fujian Hainan Shenzhen Hong Kong Total Total

¿Àer(M' Sales & marketing 23 9 8 5 3 48 65

¨m©°e Professional services and

RgG! technical support 20 15 8 12 1 56 81

¾8 Research & development 11 8 8 6 0 33 8

¯°e5N Finance & administration 5 3 2 2 9 21 53

59 35 26 25 13 158 207

Remuneration Policies and Labor Policies

With the overall objective of providing competitive salaries package,

the employee’s salary level will be remunerated and adjusted in

closed association with individual’s performance, qualification and

experience as well as the labor market conditions. Other than the

basic remuneration, discretionary bonus may be rewarded to

eligible employee by the assessment in the merit of individual’s

performance and by reference to the Group’s performance. The

Group also provides fringe benefits including contributions to

retirement scheme, medical and unemployment insurance scheme

and housing funds to eligible employees. No share option has

been granted to any eligible persons for the year ended 30th

June, 2004 (2003: 14,732,000 share options). The total staff

number decreased to 158 in 2004 from 207 of last year was in

response to the result of decrease in the turnover of the Group in

2004. The Group has maintained satisfactory labor relations and

does not encounter any serious labor disputes that lead to the

interruption of the Group’s operation during the year ended 30th

June, 2004.

Total remuneration including basic salaries, bonus, allowances and

fringe benefits for the year ended 30th June, 2004 increased to

approximately RMB9,787,000 (2003: RMB8,252,000), of which

approximately RMB1,460,000 (2003: RMB1,846,000) relating to

directors’ remuneration.
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

During the year, the Group’s source of funding was generated

from its operating activities, the placement of 25,000,000 new

shares with its net proceeds of approximately HK$6,000,000

(equivalent to RMB6,360,000) (2003: Nil) and the additional

utilisation of short-term bank borrowings of approximately

RMB13,045,000 (2003: RMB36,185,000). As at 30th June, 2004,

the Group had bank and cash balances of approximately

RMB114,141,000 (2003: RMB138,426,000) of which approximately

RMB27,865,000 (2003: RMB24,433,000) has been pledged with

the banks. No additional banking facilities have been arranged by

the Group for the year ended 30th June, 2004.

The currencies in which cash and cash equivalent held by the

Group are mainly Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars. A bank

bor rowing of  approx imate ly  RMB52,728,000 (2003:

RMB36,185,000) bearing interest ranging from 1.33% to 6% (2003:

2.2% to 2.6375%) was arranged for the Group’s operation

subsidiaries in Beijing and Hong Kong denominated in United States

dollars and Hong Kong dollars respectively for the year ended

30th June, 2004. As at 30th June, 2004, the Group had total

assets of approximately RMB282,878,000 (2003: RMB257,307,000)

which were financed by current liabilities of approximately

RMB68,823,000 (2003: RMB47,808,000), the non-current portion

of the coupon bonds of approximately RMB22,324,000 (2003:

RMB29,765,000), the minority interests of RMB1,800,000 (2003:

Nil) and shareholder’s equity of approximately RMB189,931,000

(2003: RMB179,734,000). The ratio of current assets to current

liabilities was 2.37 (2003: 3.8). The Company’s share capital

increased to HK$44,000,000 (equivalent to approximately

RMB46,640,000) (2003: RMB43,990,000) for the year ended 30th

June, 2004.
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Foreign Exchange Exposure

Most of the assets of the Group were denominated in Renminbi

and Hong Kong dollars as the major operating activities of the

Group were in the PRC and Hong Kong and the major liabilities

were denominated in United States dollars and Hong Kong dollars

resulting from the issue of five-year term 2.5% coupon bonds

with warrants and the utilisation of short-term bank loan. It was

indeed a significant movement of United States dollars by

depreciation against other major international currencies and

revaluation pressure was also posed on Renminbi during the year

ended 30th June, 2004. The possible movement between United

States dollars and Renminbi shall be acting favourable to the

Group and, therefore, the Group did not engage in any forward

foreign contracts for the year ended 30th June, 2004.

Trade Receivables

During the year under review, the trade receivables net of provision

of doubtful debts amounted to approximately RMB47,906,000 in

2004 (2003: RMB60,388,000). The ageing analysis of 2004 is set

out below:
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Year ended 30th June

2004 2003

% RMB’000 RMB’000

30q) Within 30 days 9.5 4,800 2,473

31q890q 31 to 90 days 0.4 220 4,327

91q8360q 91 to 360 days 13.1 6,620 35,065

��360q Over 360 days 77 38,787 21,702

�Î¡� Receivables

S²|jg©,^ (net of specific provision) 100 50,427 63,567

²�~«©, Less: General Provision (2,521) (3,179)

47,906 60,388
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As there were no sales for “SAVIN 2000 II” being recorded for the

year ended 30th June, 2004 due to an adjustment of policy in the

government’s power consumption structure, the majority of

receivables in the over 360 days category in the ageing analysis

was in relation to “SAVIN 2000 II” projects completed in 2002 and

2003 which represented approximately 69% (2003: 70%) of the

gross trade receivables for the year ended 30th June, 2004.

For some of the projects of “SAVIN 2000 I” targeted for commercial

building and hotels, the debt collection of which was to certain

extent affected by the post-SARS effect in the early part of the

Group’s financial year and the specific provision for those receivables

of approximately RMB1,617,000 (2003: RMB2,245,000) was thus

made for the year ended 30th June, 2004. The Group did also

adopt a general practice to provide approximately RMB2,521,000

for provision of doubtful debts (2003: RMB3,179,000) representing

around 5% of the net trade receivables after specific provision as

of 30th June, 2004.

The Group indeed enforces an effective credit control procedure in

reviewing each of the proposed contract regarding the payment

terms against the customer credibility and assessing the possibility

of default in repayment by our finance personnel and the

management in charge of sales operation also reviews the credibility

of all customers before concluding the sales contract. As a result,

the gross trade receivables decreased by around 20.7% from last

year and the Group will continue to strengthen the present credit

control policy aiming at minimising the possibility of incurring bad

debts.

Gearing Ratio

The Group’s gearing ratio, defined as the ratio between long-term

borrowings and shareholder’s equity, was 0.117 for the year ended

30th June, 2004 (2003: 0.164).

i8jkklÜmnopqrÜs/\¹º

2000 II]Aß?N�ñV´è4cNO�6

EÕâk¿À/¡ª¹ºß��360q9g)

(�Î�3�C¹½ÝjkkjÜejkk

oÜ5�(\¹º2000 II]3»Xx/�i8

jkklÜmnopqrÜs(�ÎC)¡

�vwx69%SjkkoÜ�70% R̂

@$Ý¬Fmþ·e¬­(\¹º2000 I ]

�ï3»E¬/%tu(Ð°­ÎÝ%¯°

ÜsW*�® sq?5ÜªíÝÞ�(é

ê#AB/i8jkklÜmnopqrÜ

s@JK�Î�3|}(ju©,x¬Åy

z 1,617,000{Sj k k o Ü�Å y z

2,245,000{ R̂hA/%tu�V~«¯¡/

@¨°¡v©©,xÅyz2,521,000{Sj

kkoÜ�Åyz3,179,000{ /̂�Ýjkk

lÜmnopq±'ju©,�(�ÎC)

¡��wx5%R

%tuð5���(��Vf ²/¦@¹

º��³ê ´_ç��x(µ�¶�/>

�%tu¯°ÅÆe-.¿Àm°(µ�¶

·¦}Ô§¸��éê(�Q3/7É�Ë

Ì¿À�x% ´#X¹º(��QVRA

h/�ÎC)¡�vw[|Ü}~x20.7%R

%tuæçè;½0Ô5��¹µNO/¦

æºM°¡(�Q3²8fPR

;îGHIJ

%tui8jkklÜmnopqrÜs(

yF-ÐÁ�¬0.117SjkkoÜ�0.164 /̂

0u»¬Z*��½WÚÑÏ(�(Á�R



º»»¼½½ª Annual Report 2004 23

/0123456
Management Discussion and  Analysis

Charges on Group Assets and Contingent
Liabilities

As at 30th June, 2004, a total of approximately RMB27,865,000

(2003: RMB24,433,000) bank deposit was pledged as security for

loans and banking facilities and the corporate guarantee to the

extent of approximately RMB52,728,000 (2003: RMB36,185,000)

against the loans and banking facilities was also made by the

Company. Save as disclosed above, the Group had no material

contingent liabilities as at 30th June, 2004.

Acquisition of Subsidiaries

The Group entered into an agreement on 23rd March, 2004 with

Crown Faith Holdings Limited to acquire 75% of the equity interest

for the consideration of HK$60,000,000 (equivalent to

RMB63,600,000) in China Meijia Education Holdings Limited which

holds 100% interest in Fujian Shenzhou Electron Information

Technology Co., Ltd. (currently known as Fujian Creative New Era

Control Technology Co., Ltd., abbreviated as “Fujian New Era”)

whose principal activities are mainly engaged in the provision of

patented technology in high efficiency energy saving hot/cold water

equipments for hotels and the provision of energy management

solutions for industrial enterprises in the PRC. The details of which

could be referred to the circular dated 16th April, 2004. The

Directors believed that the acquisition of Fujian New Era is in

compliance with the Group’s co-operation strategy via modes such

as consolidating existing energy saving market and enhancing

product variety in commercial and industrial energy saving areas.
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The actual progress of the Group’s business objectives for the period of six months ended 30th June, 2004, as set

out in the prospectus of the Company dated 24th January, 2002, (the “Prospectus”), is as follows:

Business objectives for the period of six months

ended 30th June, 2004 disclosed in the Prospectus

Research and development:

• Finalise theory development and commence the

development of the prototype of the district cooling

system, which is designed to provide centralised

cooling to high grade residential communities in

cities.

Sales and marketing:

• Sign and complete new showcase projects with

the developers in high-end residential community

segment; and

• Further increase the Group’s market penetration in

cities in the northern region of the PRC.

Geographical expansion:

• To establish significant market presence in at least

two Southeast Asian countries and to increase the

percentage of its revenues from the overseas

markets.

Actual business progress for the period of six

months ended 30th June, 2004

As disclosed under the same heading as above in the

Company’s reports dated 19th September, 2003 and

12th February, 2004 for the reason of postponing the

development plan of this control technology, the

Company would not consider to proceed with the plan

until the restoration of business opportunities in this

field.

No sales and marketing works have been conducted

due to the postponement on the development of this

technology.

A significant development of the Group during the year

under review was to conduct concrete negotiation with

Henan Construction Investment Company which is the

policy-concerned investment company under Henan

provincial government with significant investment in the

infrastructure business and an energy efficiency

management system contract at an aggregate value of

about RMB12,000,000 for the 10,000-volt electrical

retrofitting in Tong Li Cement Co., Ltd. was signed in

August 2004. The signing of this contract represents

the Group’s successful penetration into large-scale

industrial enterprises whose production bases are mainly

established in the northern region of the PRC.

A dedicated unit of sales and technical team was formed

in February 2004 to conduct various preliminary energy

audit works for customers in the Philippines. Except in

Hong Kong, no revenue has been generated from

overseas market for the year ended 30th June, 2004.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

The net proceeds of the Company raised by way of placing of the

Company’s shares being listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange

on 31st January, 2002 has been applied in the following area:
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For the period of twelve months up to 30th June, 2004 planned utilised

RMB’000 RMB’000

_`a$� RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT

+)ÝÖe¬<�L Control technologies for indoor ventilation

Vf(VfRg and air quality control 1,060 0

fÅ@sVfe Personal temperature control and

ÅËÐ�× occupancy sensor control 1,060 0

Zrtßw*¥� District cooling systems 2,120 0

ÿb`CDcd SALES & MARKETING

r(M'e-¿zÓ Marketing and promotional activities 2,120 1,005

ç/ØÙßý Establishment of training centres 1,060 0

åeCD�ö GEOGRAPHICAL EXPANSION

�Ú`0?Kç/ Establish strategic sales and

O�3¿Àe©° service partnership in

�|FGxã Southeast Asian countries 2,120 245

9,540 1,250

* Amounts are extracted from the Company’s Prospectus but amounts

will be reclassified for comparisons purpose at the exchange rate of

HK$1.00=RMB1.06. An unutilised listing proceeds of HKD16,000,000

(equivalent to approximately RMB 16,960,000) which had been

originally planned for the areas in (i) control technologies for indoor

ventilation and air quality control (ii) personal temperature control

and occupancy sensor control, (iii) district cooling systems and (iv)

development of domestic compressor-free air conditioners were

reallocated for the acquisition of 75% equity interest in China Meijia

Education Holdings Limited. For the detail of this acquisition, please

refer to the Company’s circular dated 16th April, 2004.
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. SHUM Fong Chung (ú{ç ), aged 49, was appointed as an

executive director of the Company on 26th September, 2001. Mr.

Shum is the chairman and a founding member of the Company.

He is responsible for formulating the overall business strategies

and plans of the Group. Mr. Shum has more than 22 years’

experience in electronic engineering business. Prior to founding

the Group in 1999, Mr. Shum worked as an engineer and focused

on electronic engineering research in `>�®T ¾[#(Nanjing

the Ninth Five Year Plan Engineering Research Institute) and was

the general manager of ß?âÝtu  (the China Vintong Group),

a stated-owned electronic trading company in Guangzhou. Mr.

Shum graduated with a Bachelor’s degree in �äñT   (Wireless

Engineering) from Fuzhou University (DE�c) and he also studied

business management in ×@�c  (Xiamen University).

Ms. LIN Rong Ying (hij ), aged 50, was appointed as an

executive director of the Company on 26th September, 2001. Ms.

Lin is the deputy chairman of the Company. She graduated with a

Bachelor’s degree in accountancy from é[�c (Jiangxi University).

Ms. Lin has 16 years of experience in financial and accounting

management and is responsible for the overall financial operations

of the Group.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. HON Wa Fai (lmn ), aged 44, was appointed as an

independent non-executive director of the Company on 19th

August, 2002. Mr. Hon is a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of

Certified Public Accountants (Practising) and has more than 18

years of experience in accounting field. Mr. Hon is a fellow of the

Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and he is an

associate of both the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and

Administrators and the Hong Kong Institute of Company Secretaries.

Mr. Hon also holds Master of Business Administration from the

University of Strathclyde, Master of Professional Accounting from

Hong Kong Polytechnic University and Master of Applied Finance

from the University of Western Sydney.
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Mr. SHI Jian Hui (o,n ), aged 48, was appointed as an

independent non-executive director of the Company on 26th

September, 2001. He has served as the officer and vice president

of the financial division of DçHÅ�DÝÉ  (the Standing

Committee of the Provisional People’s Congress of Fujian Province)

for more than 12 years. He has not held any directorship in any

listed companies in the last three years. Mr. Shi has entered a

letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three years

commencing on 3rd January, 2002 and will continue thereafter

unless and until terminated in accordance with the terms and

conditions stated in the letter of appointment. The director’s

remuneration payable to Mr. Shi will be determined by the Board.

Mr. Shi has no interest in the shares of the Company within the

meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Future Ordinance and he

does not have any relationship with any directors, senior

management, management shareholders, substantial shareholders,

or controlling shareholders of the Company.

Ms. TO Sin Ning (pqr ), aged 45, was appointed as an

independent non-executive director of the Company on 30th

September, 2004. She graduated from Guangxi Medical College

with a bachelor degree. She has over 22 years of experience in

teaching, management and research. Ms. To is currently a senior

consultant of China International Research Association on

Transnational Corporations Development Centre. She has not held

any directorship in any listed companies in the last three years.

She has entered a letter of appointment with the Company for a

term of three years, she shall be entitled to terminate her

appointment at any time by giving the Company at least one

month notice in writing. Ms. To shall be entitled to an annual

salary of HK$60,000.00 during her term of appointment, which

will be reviewed by the Board from time to time. Ms. To has no

interest in the shares of the Company within the meaning of Part

XV of the Securities and Future Ordinance. She has not previously

held any position with the Company or its subsidiaries. She does

not have any relationship with any directors, senior management,

management shareholders, substantial shareholders, or controlling

shareholders of the Company.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. TSANG Hiu Fung (st< ), aged 43, is the administration

and human resources controller of the Company who is in charge

of administration and personnel functions of the Group since May

2004. Ms. Tsang was appointed as an independent non-executive

director of the Company in September 2001 and resigned in

August 2002. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Tsang is the finance

editor of the INfonews Channels of Phoenix Satellite Television

Company Limited (ñòûüýþy!ÿ ).

Mr. LI Han Jin (uvw ), aged 43, is the general manager of

Fujian Traving Science & Technology of Saving Development Co.,

Ltd., Hainan Creative Easy Union Science & Technology of Saving

Development Co., Ltd. and Shenzhen Creative Eternal Well Science

& Technology of Saving Development Co., Ltd. Mr. Li has more

than 16 years of experience in management and economic

research.

Dr. MA Jun (xy ), aged 29, is the technical controller of the

Company who is in charge of the research and development team

of the Group and he is also the general manager of Beijing Creative

Easy Union Science & Technology of Saving Development Co.,

Ltd. He has extensive research experience in thermal energy and

computer engineering. Dr. Ma holds a Doctorate degree’s in +Q

T   (thermal energy engineering), specialising in HVAC (w+Ý

Ö½¬<�PT  ) and a Bachelor degree’s in ï!hRg½�

.T   (computer technology and application engineering) from

Tsinghua University.

Mr. LU Guo Dong (zh{ ), aged 40, is the director of Shenzhen

Creative Eternal Well Science & Technology of Saving Development

Co., Ltd. He graduated from c=hñcu  (Hebei Mechanical

Engineering College) with a Bachelor’s degree in mechanical

engineering. He has over 20 years of experience in factory

management and trading business.
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Mr. Simon CHEUNG Kwok Chuen (�h� ), aged 48, is the

managing director of Creative Energy (Asia) Limited. He has over

24 years of experience in HVAC controls and instrumentation prior

to joining the group in 2003. Mr. Cheung holds a B.Sc. degree in

Mechanical Engineering from the University of Manitoba in Canada.

He is a Chartered Engineer in Measurement and Control (Minst

MC) and is a senior member of the Instrument Society of America

(ISA). He is also the technical director of Hong Kong Towngas.

QUALIFIED ACCOUNTANT

Mr. KAM Ying Fai (�jn ), aged 35, is the financial controller

and company secretary of the Company. He has over 10 years of

experience in finance, accounting, taxation and auditing. Mr. Kam

holds a fellow membership of the Association of Chartered Certified

Accountants and is a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong

Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are pleased to

present their annual report together with the audited financial

statements of Creative Energy Solutions Holdings Limited (the

“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) for the

year ended 30th June, 2004.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries

are principally engaged in providing a comprehensive range of

services for environmental energy saving including design,

implementation of energy efficiency management solutions systems

and retrofit projects with energy performance contract mechanism.

The Group’s turnover for the year is principally attributable to the

provision of system design and integration and energy saving

services. An analysis of turnover from the principal activities during

the year is set out in note 3 to the financial statements.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations

of the operations of the Company and its subsidiaries are set out

in note 11 to the financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases

attributable to the major customers and suppliers respectively during

the year is as follows:
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Percentage of

the Group’s total

Sales Purchases

f�¹º The largest customer 5.7%

®�¹ºvï Five largest customers in aggregate 16.1%

f�w�F The largest supplier 33.4%

®�w�Fvï Five largest suppliers in aggregate 71.1%

At no time during the year have the Directors, their associates, or

any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the directors owns

more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any

interest in five largest customers and suppliers.
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RESULTS

Details of the Group’s results for the year ended 30th June, 2004

are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 46 of

this annual report.

DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors has resolved not to recommend the payment

of final dividend for the year ended 30th June, 2004 (2003: Nil).

No interim dividend was declared for the six months ended 31st

December, 2003 (2002: Nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during

the year are set out in note 27 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group and the Company

during the year are set out in note 29 to the financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 30th June, 2004, neither the Company nor

any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the

Company’s listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s

Bye-laws and there is no restriction against such rights under the

laws of Bermuda.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 30th June, 2004 are

set out in note 15 to the financial statements.
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FIXED ASSETS

Details of the movements in the fixed assets of the Group during

the year are set out in note 12 to the financial statements.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Details of the movements in the intangible assets of the Group

during the year are set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

BANK LOANS AND OVERDRAFTS

Particulars of the bank loans and overdrafts of the Group as at

30th June, 2004 are set out in note 24 to the financial statements.

COMMITMENTS

Particulars of the commitments of the Group as at 30th June,

2004 are set out in note 33 to the financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)

was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 3rd January,

2002 for the primary purpose of providing incentives to eligible

person (as defined in the Share Option Scheme) and will expire on

2nd January, 2012. Under the Share Option Scheme, the Company

may grant options to any person who is a director (including the

independent non-executive directors of the Company) or employee,

whether full-time or part-time, of the Company or any of its

subsidiaries to subscribe for shares in the Company.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be

granted under the Scheme must not exceed 10% of the shares of

the Company in issue as at the date of approval of the Share

Option Scheme. The total number of shares issued and to be

issued upon exercise of the options granted and to be granted to

each eligible person in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1%

of the shares of the Company in issue. Any further grant of

options in excess of the individual limit must be subject to

members’ approval.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Options granted must be taken up within 21 days from the offer

date. Upon acceptance of the offer, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00

to the Company as consideration for the grant. Options shall be

exercised after one year from the offer date of the share option to

a period to be notified by the Board of Directors to each grantee

at the time of making such offer, and shall expire on the earlier of

the last day of (i) a 10 year period from the date of such grant and

(ii) 10 years from 3rd January, 2002. The subscription price is

determined by the Board of Directors in its absolute discretion

which, in any event, shall not be less than the highest of (a) the

closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily

quotation sheet on the date of grant of that option, which must

be a business day; (b) the average of the closing price of the

shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for

the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant of

that option; and (c) the nominal value for the time being of each

share.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

As at 30th June, 2004, particulars of the options outstanding

under the Share Option Scheme of the Company during the year

were as follows:
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Outstanding

Name or Category Balance as at Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed as at Exercisable Exercise price

of participant 1st July, 2003 during the year during the year during the year during the year 30th June, 2004 Date of grant period per share

HK$

ÃÄ¢

Director:

àáâ 1,200,000 – – – – 1,200,000 jkkoÜlnlq ØÙ 0.30

Lin Rong Ying 04/04/2003 Note

�¢f#lÒ¢

Chief Executive:

ëâå 3,040,000 – – – – 3,040,000 jkkoÜlnlq ØÙ 0.30

Kam Ying Fai 04/04/2003 Note

4Ò¢

Employees:

vË 10,492,000 – – – (600,000) 9,892,000 jkkoÜlnlq ØÙ 0.30

In aggregate 04/04/2003 Note

äÎ 14,732,000 (600,000) 14,132,000

Total

Note: Exercisable period: 04/04/2004 – 02/01/2012 (up to 25% of shares

exercisable under options granted)

04/04/2005 – 02/01/2012 (up to 50% of shares

exercisable under options granted)

04/04/2006 – 02/01/2012 (up to 75% of shares

exercisable under options granted)

04/04/2007 – 02/01/2012 (up to 100% of shares

exercisable under options granted)
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2.5% COUPON BONDS WITH WARRANTS ATTACHED

Pursuant to two subscription agreements dated 26th August, 2002

and 27th August, 2002 respectively in respect of the placement of

2.5% coupon bonds due on 1st November, 2007 with warrants,

having an aggregate principal amount of US$4,500,000 (equivalent

to approximately RMB37,206,000). Bondholders can exercise the

subscription rights attaching to the warrants, expiring on 1st

November, 2007, to subscribe for subscription shares of the

Company at an adjusted subscription price (being the average

closing price of the Company’s shares for the period of one month

immediately preceding 1st July, 2004) of HK$0.19 per share, subject

to adjustment. The bonds and the warrants are not listed on the

Stock Exchange or any other stock market.

During the year ended 30th June, 2004, no warrant was exercised

by the warrantholders.

PLACING AND SUBSCRIPTION OF SHARES

On 19th November, 2003, Mr. Shum Fong Chung (“Mr. Shum”), a

Director and a substantial shareholder of the Company, entered

into a placing agreement with VC CEF Brokerage Limited, a placing

agent, in respect of the placing of up to 25,000,000 existing shares

of the Company by Mr. Shum through VC CEF Brokerage Limited

to independent professional and institutional investors on a best

effort basis at a price of HK$0.25 per share (the “Placing”).

On the same date, Mr. Shum entered into a subscription agreement

with the Company in respect of the subscription of up to

25,000,000 new shares of the Company by Mr. Shum at a price of

HK$0.25 per share (the “Subscription”).

The Placing was completed on 24th November, 2003 and the

Subscription was completed on 1st December, 2003. The net

proceeds of approximately HK$6,000,000 were received by the

Company for the business expansion of the Group’s market share

in the Hong Kong and overseas markets, including procurement of

hardware, equipment and other sub-contract works for customers

under energy saving contracts with the Group and for the use as

general working capital of the Group.
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Details of the Group’s retirement benefits schemes for the year

ended 30th June, 2004 are set out in note 30 to the financial

statements.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 30th June, 2004, there was no transaction

which needed to be disclosed as connected transaction in

accordance with the requirements of the GEM Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date

of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Shum Fong Chung

Ms. Lin Rong Ying

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Hon Wa Fai

Mr. Shi Jian Hui

In accordance with Bye-law 87 of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr.

Shi Jian Hui will retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming

annual general meeting of the Company and, being eligible, will

offer himself for re-election.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENTS

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company for an initial term of three years commencing
on 31st January, 2002 and shall continue thereafter unless and
until terminated by either party giving the other not less than
three months prior written notice.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has entered into
a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three year
commencing on 3rd January, 2002 and 19th August, 2002
respectively and shall continue thereafter unless and until terminated
by either party giving the other not less than three months prior
written notice.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors proposed for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has an
unexpired service contract which is not determinable by the
Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

As at 30th June, 2004, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executives in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO”)) as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to the adopted code for securities transactions
by directors (the “Adopted Code”) as set out in the Rules 5.46 to
5.68 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”)
were as follows:

Long positions in shares of the Company
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Percentage
Personal Family Corporate of issued

Name of Director interests interests interests Total  share capital

Þ�ßxG 247,128,000 – – 247,128,000 56.17%

Mr. Shum Fong Chung
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES (Continued)

Long positions in underlying shares of the
Company

ÃÄ`�¢f#lÒ3��
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Share Options in the Company
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Number of

shares in respect

of options

 outstanding

Exercisable as at

Name Date of grant Exercise price period 30th June, 2004

(HK$)

ÃÄ¢

Director:

àáâç� jkkoÜlnlq 0.30 ØÙ 1,200,000

Ms. Lin Rong Ying 04/04/2003 Note

�¢f#lÒ¢

Chief executive:

ëâåxG jkkoÜlnlq 0.30 ØÙ 3,040,000

Mr. Kam Ying Fai 04/04/2003 Note

Note: Exercisable period: 04/04/2004 – 02/01/2012 (up to 25% of

underlying shares exercisable under options

granted)

04/04/2005 – 02/01/2012 (up to 50% of

underlying shares exercisable under options

granted)

04/04/2006 – 02/01/2012 (up to 75% of

underlying shares exercisable under options

granted)

04/04/2007 – 02/01/2012 (up to 100% of

underlying shares exercisable under options

granted)
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors, chief executives or

their associates had any interests and short positions in the shares,

underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its

associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the

SFO) which are recorded in the register required to be kept by the

Company under Section 352 of the SFO or which are notified to

the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Adopted

Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 30th June, 2004, so far as is known to the Directors, the

following person (other than the Directors and Chief Executives of

the Company) had interests or short positions in the shares and

underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register

required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in shares of the Company
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Number of Percentage of

Name Capacity ordinary shares issued share capital

Lç?ç� �ÏjXÅ 24,000,000 5.78%

Ms. Kwok Kin Kwok Beneficial owner

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBT

SECURITIES

Other than as disclosed under the sections “Share Option Scheme”

and “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in Securities” above,

at no time during the year was the Company or any of its

subsidiaries, or any of its fellow subsidiaries, a party to any

arrangement to enable the Directors or Chief Executives of the

Company (including their spouses or children under 18 years of

age) to have any right to subscribe for securities of the Company

or any of its associated corporations as defined in the SFO or to

acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures

of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

There was no contract of significance in relation to the Company’s

business, to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a

party, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the

year, and in which a Director had, whether directly or indirectly, a

material interest, nor there was any other contract of significance

in relation to the Company’s business between the Company or

any of the Company’s subsidiaries and a controlling shareholder

or any of its subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year ended 30th June, 2004, none of the Directors or

the management shareholder of the Company (as defined in the

GEM Listing Rules) had any interest in a business which competes

or may compete with the business of the Group.

INTEREST OF SPONSOR

As updated and notified by the Company’s sponsor, JS Cresvale

Capital Limited (“JS Cresvale”), as at 30th June, 2004, neither JS

Cresvale nor its directors, employees or their associates had any

interest in the share capital of the Company or any subsidiaries of

the Group, or any right to subscribe for or to nominate persons

to subscribe for the shares of the Company or any member of the

Group.

Pursuant to the sponsorship agreement entered into between the

Company and JS Cresvale, JS Cresvale will receive fees for acting

as the Company’s ongoing sponsor for the period commencing

on 1st April, 2002 to 30th June, 2004 or until the sponsorship

agreement is terminated upon the terms and conditions as set

out therein.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract concerning the management and administration of

the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company

was entered into or existed during the year.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the

Group for the current year and the last four financial years is set

out on page 109 of the annual report.

ADOPTED CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY

DIRECTORS

During the year ended 30th June, 2004, the Company has adopted

the code set out in the Rules 5.46 to 5.68 of the GEM Listing

Rules for securities transactions by Directors. The Company also

had made specific enquiry of all Directors and the Company was

not aware of any non-compliance with the required standard set

out in the Adopted Code regarding securities transactions by

directors.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE

DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each Independent Non-executive

Directors an annual confirmation for independence pursuant to

Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Independent Non-executive

Directors have confirmed that they are independent.

COMPLIANCE WITH RULES 5.34 TO 5.45 OF THE

GEM LISTING RULES

During the year ended 30th June, 2004, the Company has complied

with the board practices and procedures as set out in Rules 5.34

to 5.45 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee on 3rd January,

2002 with written terms of reference which deal clearly with its

authority and duties. The primary duties of the audit committee

include reviewing the Company’s annual report and financial

statements, half-year report and quarterly reports and providing

advice and comments thereon to the Board of Directors. The audit

committee is also responsible for reviewing and supervising the

Company’s financial reporting and internal control procedures of

the Group.

The audit committee comprises two independent non-executive

directors, namely, Mr. Hon Wa Fai and Mr. Shi Jian Hui. The audit

committee had met four times during the year to review and

discuss the Group’s annual results, interim results and two quarterly

results, and providing advices and recommendations to the Board.

AUDITORS

The financial statements for the year were audited by CCIF CPA

Limited (formerly known as Charles Chan, Ip & Fung CPA Ltd.)

who will retire at the conclusion of the forthcoming annual general

meeting, and being el igible, wi l l  offer themselves for

re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of CCIF CPA

Limited as the Company’s auditors for the ensuing year is to be

proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Shum Fong Chung

Chairman

Hong Kong, 21st September, 2004
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CCIF CPA LIMITED
37/F Hennessy Centre
500 Hennessy Road
www.ccifcpa.com.hk

AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

CREATIVE ENERGY SOLUTIONS HOLDINGS LIMITED

(INCORPORATED IN BERMUDA WITH LIMITED LIABILITY)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 46 to 108

which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles

generally accepted in Hong Kong.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND

AUDITORS

The Company’s directors are responsible for the preparation of

financial statements which give a true and fair view. In preparing

financial statements which give a true and fair view it is

fundamental that appropriate accounting policies are selected and

applied consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on

our audit, on those financial statements and to report our opinion

solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not

assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person

for the contents of this report.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing

Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of

evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial

statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant

estimates and judgements made by the directors in the preparation

of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies

are appropriate to the Company’s and the Group’s circumstances,

consistently applied and adequately disclosed.
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We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the

information and explanations which we considered necessary in

order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable

assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from

material misstatement. In forming our opinion we also evaluated

the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the

financial statements. We believe that our audit provides a

reasonable basis for our opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view

of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at

30th June, 2004 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the

year then ended and have been properly prepared in accordance

with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

CCIF CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong

21st September, 2004

Chan Wai Dune, Charles

Practising Certificate Number P00712
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
For the year ended 30th June, 2004
(Expressed in Renminbi)

º»»¼½ jkkoÜ

ØÙ lCDEF Åyz�{

2004 2003

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

d1ê TURNOVER 3 59,505 97,134

©e!" COST OF SERVICES (22,131) (34,756)

þN GROSS PROFIT 37,374 62,378

G�8¬ OTHER REVENUE 4 1,471 1,152

àÿ!" DISTRIBUTION COSTS (8,333) (12,123)

f#$% ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES (16,116) (18,214)

G�d&$% OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES (7,871) (5,882)

cdMN PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS 6,525 27,311

Ê;!" FINANCE COSTS (2,348) (4,229)

ËÌûAÍ PROFIT FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES

1eMN BEFORE TAXATION 5 4,177 23,082

Ì[ TAXATION 6(a) (624) (469)

ËÌzAÍ PROFIT FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES

1eMN AFTER TAXATION 3,553 22,613

ÎÖÁëÔ¬ MINORITY INTERESTS 287 –

ÁënìMN PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE

TO SHAREHOLDERS 9 3,840 22,613

lCDRMB ÅyzRMB

 ÁÏN EARNINGS PER SHARE

¨% Basic 10(a) 0.89àcents 5.45¹ gcents

~h Diluted 10(b) 0.87àcents ,-. gN/A

The notes on pages 52 to 108 form part of these financial

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
As at 30th June, 2004

(Expressed in Renminbi)

º»»¼½ jkkoÜ

ØÙ lCDEF Åyz�{

2004 2003
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

Ç��;î NON-CURRENT ASSETS
(uyF Fixed assets 12 8,485 9,341
�myF Intangible assets 13 19,671 20,410
F� Goodwill 14 55,453 –
0�op�y Other investments in securities 16 25,454 22,857
�ÎC)¡� Trade receivables 17 10,546 18,662

119,609 71,270
��;î CURRENT ASSETS
G£ Inventories 18 480 428
�çT  Work in progress 19 404 887
�ÎC)e0�¡� Trade and other receivables 20 48,244 46,296
¾v�45G� Pledged bank deposits 21 27,865 24,433
ÔÕeÔÕKû� Cash and cash equivalents 22 86,276 113,993

163,269 186,037
��GH CURRENT LIABILITIES
�µC)e0�¡� Trade and other payables 23 8,385 4,111
�µi® Bills payable 3,498 –
45��e"G Bank loans and overdrafts 24 49,230 36,185
u�Ðp(ÿ*CD Current portion of coupon bonds` 26 7,441 7,441
�µ#â- Income tax payable 25 269 71

68,823 47,808

��;îÐÑ NET CURRENT ASSETS 94,446 138,229

;îäÑÒ��GH TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES 214,055 209,499

Ç��GH NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
u�Ðp Coupon bonds 26 22,324 29,765

ÎÖÁëÔ¬ MINORITY INTERESTS 1,800 –

;îÐÑ NET ASSETS 189,931 179,734

Á"`�� CAPITAL AND RESERVES
W% Share capital 27 46,640 43,990
1, Reserves 29 143,291 135,744

189,931 179,734

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
21st September, 2004.

ú{ç hij
Shum Fong Chung Lin Rong Ying

`a `a
Director Director

The notes on pages 52 to 108 form part of these financial
statements.
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BALANCE SHEET
As at 30th June, 2004
(Expressed in Renminbi)

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
21st September, 2004.

ú{ç hij
Shum Fong Chung Lin Rong Ying

`a `a
Director Director

The notes on pages 52 to 108 form part of these financial
statements.

º»»¼½ jkkoÜ

ØÙ lCDEF Åyz�{

2004 2003

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

Ç��;î NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Ø�Z[(�y Investments in subsidiaries 15 141,666 73,837

0�op�y Other investments in securities 16 212 212

141,878 74,049

��;î CURRENT ASSETS

�ÎC)e0�¡� Trade and other receivables 20 91,664 96,118

¾v�45G� Pledged bank deposits 21 – 1,060

ÔÕeÔÕKû� Cash and cash equivalents 22 1,877 10,476

93,541 107,654

��GH CURRENT LIABILITIES

�µC)e0�¡� Trade and other payables 23 61,564 2,028

u�Ðp(ÿ*CD Current portion of coupon bonds 26 7,441 7,441

69,005 9,469

��;îÐÑ NET CURRENT ASSETS 24,536 98,185

;îäÑÒ��GH TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT

LIABILITIES 166,414 172,234

Ç��GH NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

u�Ðp Coupon bonds 26 22,324 29,765

;îÐÑ NET ASSETS 144,090 142,469

Á"`�� CAPITAL AND RESERVES

W% Share capital 27 46,640 43,990

1, Reserves 29 97,450 98,479

144,090 142,469

¾ÝjkklÜ�njp~q{`aÉ78

e�ÑÁ8R
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 30th June, 2004

(Expressed in Renminbi)

º»»¼½ jkkoÜ

ØÙ lCDEF Åyz�{

2004 2003

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

Ý<n~q(WÚÑÏ Shareholders’ equity at 1st July 179,734 166,799

%Üsjü Net profit for the year 3,840 22,613

Ü)78e¾µ Dividends in respect of the previous

(%¯NÜsW� financial year, approved

and paid during the year – (9,678)

½WÚ¿5W% Movements in shareholders’ equity 27 & 29

")FG( arising from capital transactions

WÚÑÏÒÓ� with shareholders:

|®kÅøÀ Shares issued under a private

85WD placement 2,650 –

¾ÎWD,û�w Net share premium received 3,707 –

6,357 –

Ýmnopq(WÚÑÏ Shareholders’ equity at 30th June 189,931 179,734

The notes on pages 52 to 108 form part of these financial
statements.

X528X1080(ØÙ¬hK¯°&9(3
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the year ended 30th June, 2004
(Expressed in Renminbi)

º»»¼½ jkkoÜ
ØÙ lCDEF Åyz�{

2004 2003
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

cd1e Operating activities
'-%qDm°,ü Profit from ordinary activities

before taxation 4,177 23,082
{@¦}_3|}�6� Adjustments for:
(uyF|} Depreciation of fixed assets 4,500 3,487
F�~¿ Amortisation of goodwill 2,521 –
�myF~¿ Amortisation of intangible assets 3,203 2,684
 y�% Finance costs 2,348 4,229
ü�Î� Interest income (915) (1,147)
¨°¡©, Provision for bad and doubtful debts 959 2,692
}À(uyFlN Loss on disposal of fixed assets 2 4

d&;5Ó�û Operating profit before changes
cdMN in working capital 16,795 35,031
G£²³lS5;^ Decrease/(increase) in inventories 444 (310)
�çT ²³lS5;^ Decrease/(increase) in work in progress 483 (887)
�Î�3£�Õe µ Decrease/(increase) in debtors,
�3²³lS5;^ deposits and prepayments 12,363 (7,760)

�µ�3e Increase in creditors and
�ïè.5; accrued charges 3,738 534

�µi®5; Increase in bills payables 3,498 –
0��µ-3²³ Decrease in other tax payables (6) (820)

1e'¸Ô5 Cash generated from operations 37,315 25,788

°­Ì[ Tax paid
¾µß?/m#â- PRC enterprise income tax paid (426) (693)

cd1e3Ô5�ÕÐê Net cash from operating activities 36,889 25,095

:;Ö� Investing activities
üm(uyFµ� Payment for purchase of fixed assets (3,994) (5,456)
}À(uyF#â�3 Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets – 4
üm�myFµ� Payment for purchase of

intangible assets – (4,816)
ü�Ø�Z[µ� Payment for purchase of subsidiaries,
S±'#ÎüÔÕ^ net of cash acquired 32 (63,672) –
ü#�yZ[vw6�� New loan to the investee company (6,597) (1,657)
#�yZ[F��� Loan repaid by the

investee company 4,000 –
�ÎXv���5; Increase in secured loan receivable (1,823) (2,735)
�Î�v���²³ Decrease in unsecured

loan receivable – 9,752

¾v�45G�5; Increase in pledged bank deposits (3,432) (24,433)

¾Îü� Interest received 926 1,136

:;Ö�3Ô5�}Ðê Net cash used in investing activities (74,592) (28,205)
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MNXYZ[Q
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 30th June, 2004

(Expressed in Renminbi)

º»»¼½ jkkoÜ

ØÙ lCDEF Åyz�{

2004 2003

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

Ê;Ö� Financing activities

|®kÅøÀ85 Proceeds from share issued

WD#â�3 under a private placement 6,625 –

GµWD85è. Payment for share issuance expenses (268) –

6545�� New bank loans 12,041 36,622

F�45�� Repayment of bank loans (3,703) (1,000)

85u�Ðp#â�3 Proceeds from issuance of

coupon bonds – 37,206

F�u�Ðp Repayment of coupon bonds (7,441) –

¾µW� Dividend paid – (9,678)

¾µ y�% Finance costs paid (1,975) (3,445)

Ê;Ö�3Ô5�ÕÐê Net cash from financing activities 5,279 59,705

Ô5`Ô5b¡× Net (decrease)/increase in cash

3,ÒÎ/ØÙÚÐê and cash equivalents (32,424) 56,595

q�>@A3Ô5`

Ô5b¡× Cash and cash equivalents at 1st July 113,430 56,835

q=>?@A3Ô5`

Ô5b¡× Cash and cash equivalents at 30th June 22 81,006 113,430

The notes on pages 52 to 108 form part of these financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
30th June, 2004
(Expressed in Renminbi)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in

accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards (which includes all applicable

Statements of Standard Accounting Practice (“SSAPs”)

and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of

Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting

principles generally accepted in Hong Kong (“HKGAAP”)

and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

These financial statements also comply with the applicable

disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing

of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM”)

of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock

Exchange”). A summary of the significant accounting

policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

(b) Basis of presentation of financial
statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the

financial statements is historical cost.

(c) Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an enterprise in which the Company,

directly or indirectly, holds more than half of the issued

share capital, or controls more than half of the voting

power, or controls the composition of the board of

directors. Subsidiaries are considered to be controlled if

the Company has the power, directly or indirectly, to

govern the financial and operating policies, so as to obtain

benefits from their activities.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the

consolidated financial statements, unless it is acquired

and held exclusively with a view to subsequent disposal

in the near future or operates under severe long-term

restrictions which significantly impair its ability to transfer

funds to the Group, in which case, it is stated in the

consolidated balance sheet at fair value with changes in

fair value recognised in the consolidated income

statement as they arise.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
30th June, 2004

(Expressed in Renminbi)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c) Subsidiaries (Continued)

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised

profits arising from intra-group transactions, are

eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial

statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group

transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised

gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of

impairment.

Minority interests at the balance sheet date, being the

portion of the net assets of subsidiaries attributable to

equity interests that are not owned by the Company,

whether directly or indirectly through subsidiaries, are

presented in the consolidated balance sheet separately

from liabilities and the shareholders’ equity. Minority

interests in the results of the Group for the year are also

separately presented in the income statement.

Where losses attributable to the minority exceed the

minority interest in the net assets of a subsidiary, the

excess, and any further losses attributable to the minority,

are charged against the Group’s interest except to the

extent that the minority has a binding obligation to, and

is able to, make good the losses. All subsequent profits

of the subsidiary are allocated to the Group until the

minority’s share of losses previously absorbed by the

Group has been recovered.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a

subsidiary is stated at cost less any impairment losses

(see note 1(i)), unless it is acquired and held exclusively

with a view to subsequent disposal in the near future or

operates under severe long-term restrictions which

significantly impair its ability to transfer funds to the

Company, in which case, it is stated at fair value with

changes in fair value recognised in the income statement

as they arise.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
30th June, 2004
(Expressed in Renminbi)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Goodwill

Positive goodwill arising on consolidation represents the

excess of the cost of the acquisition over the Group’s

interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets and

liabilities acquired. Positive goodwill is amortised on a

straight-line basis over its estimated useful life and is

recognised as expenses in the consolidated income

statement. Positive goodwill is stated in the consolidated

balance sheet at cost less any accumulated amortisation

and any impairment losses (see note 1(i)).

Negative goodwill arising on consolidation represents, the

excess, as at the date of the exchange transaction, of

the Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable

assets and liabilities acquired over the cost of the

acquisition. Negative goodwill relates to expectations of

future losses and expenses that are identified in the plan

of acquisition and can be measured reliably, but which

do not represent identifiable liabilities at the date of

acquisition, it is recognised in the consolidated income

statement when the future losses and expenses are

recognised. Any remaining negative goodwill, but not

exceeding the fair values of the non-monetary assets

acquired, is recognised in the consolidated income

statement over the weighted average useful life of those

non-monetary assets that are depreciable/amortisable.

Negative goodwill in excess of the fair values of the non-

monetary assets acquired is recognised immediately in

the consolidated income statement.

In respect of any negative goodwill not yet recognised in

the consolidated income statement, such negative

goodwill is shown in the consolidated balance sheet as a

deduction from assets in the same balance sheet

classification as positive goodwill.

On disposal of a controlled subsidiary during the year,

any attributable amount of purchased goodwill not

previously amortised through the consolidated income

statement or which has previously been dealt with as a

movement on group reserves is included in the calculation

of the profit or loss on disposal.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
30th June, 2004

(Expressed in Renminbi)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e) Other investments in securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments

in securities other than investments in subsidiaries are as

follows:

(i) Investments held on a continuing basis for an

identified long-term purpose are classified as

investment securities. Investment securities are stated

in the balance sheet at cost less any provisions for

diminution in value. Provisions are made when the

fair values have declined below the carrying amounts,

unless there is evidence that the decline is temporary,

and are recognised as an expense in the income

statement, such provisions being determined for each

investment individually.

(ii) Provisions against the carrying value of investment

securities are written back when the circumstances

and events that led to the write-down or write-off

cease to exist and there is persuasive evidence that

the new circumstances and events will persist for

the foreseeable future.

(iii) Profits or losses on disposal of investments in

securities are determined as the difference between

the estimated net disposal proceeds and the carrying

amount of the investments and are accounted for in

the income statement as they arise.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
30th June, 2004
(Expressed in Renminbi)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f) Fixed assets

(i) Fixed assets are carried in the balance sheet on the

following bases:

– construction in progress is stated at cost. Cost

comprises direct costs of construction capitalised

during the per iod of construct ion and

installation. Capitalisation of these costs ceased

and the construction in progress is transferred

to plant and machinery when substantially all

of the activities necessary to prepare the assets

for their intended use are completed.

– other fixed assets are stated in the balance sheet

at cost less accumulated depreciation (see note

1(h)) and impairment losses (see note 1(i)).

(ii) Subsequent expenditure relating to a fixed asset that

has already been recognised is added to the carrying

amount of the asset when it is probable that future

economic benefits, in excess of the originally assessed

standard of performance of the existing asset, will

flow to the Group. All other subsequent expenditure

is recognised as an expense in the period in which it

is incurred.

(iii) Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal

of a fixed asset are determined as the difference

between the estimated net disposal proceeds and

the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised

in the income statement on the date of retirement

or disposal.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
30th June, 2004

(Expressed in Renminbi)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g) Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

(i) Expenditure on research activities, undertaken with

the prospect of gaining new scientific or technical

knowledge and understanding, is recognised as an

expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Expenditure on development activities is capitalised

if the product or process is technically and

commercially feasible and the Group has sufficient

resources and the intent ion to complete

development. The expenditure capitalised includes

the costs of materials, direct labour and an

appropriate proportion of overheads. Capitalised

development costs are stated at cost less

accumulated amortisation (see note 1(h)) and

impairment losses (see note 1(i)). Other development

expenditure is recognised as an expense in the

period in which it is incurred.

(ii) Other intangible assets that are acquired by the

Group are stated in the balance sheet at cost less

accumulated amortisation (see note 1(h)) and

impairment losses (see note 1(i)). Expenditure on

internally generated goodwill and brands is

recognised as an expense in the period in which it

is incurred.

(iii) Subsequent expenditure on an intangible asset after

its purchase or its completion is recognised as an

expense when it is incurred unless it is probable

that this expenditure will enable the asset to

generate future economic benefits in excess of its

originally assessed standard of performance and this

expenditure can be measured and attributed to the

asset reliably. If these conditions are met, the

subsequent expenditure is added to the cost of the

intangible asset.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
30th June, 2004
(Expressed in Renminbi)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h) Amortisation and depreciation

(i) No depreciation is provided on construction in

progress.

(ii) Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost less

estimated residual value of fixed assets on a straight-

line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Leasehold improvements shorter of useful lives or

lease terms

Furniture and equipment 5 years

Motor vehicles 5 years

Plant and machinery 2 to 5 years

(iii) Amortisation of intangible assets is charged to the

income statement on a straight-line basis over the

assets’ estimated useful lives of not exceeding ten

years from the date when the assets are available

for use.

(i) Impairment of assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed

at each balance sheet date to identify indications that

the following assets may be impaired or an impairment

loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have

decreased:

– fixed assets;

– investments in subsidiaries;

– intangible assets; and

– positive goodwill.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable

amount is estimated. For intangible assets that are not

yet available for use, or are amortised over more than 20

years from the date when the asset is available for use

or goodwill that is amortised over 20 years from initial

recognition, the recoverable amount is estimated at each

balance sheet date. An impairment loss is recognised in

the income statement whenever the carrying amount of

such an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
30th June, 2004

(Expressed in Renminbi)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater

of its net selling price and value in use. In assessing

value in use, the estimated future cash flows are

discounted to their present value using a pre-tax

discount rate that ref lects current market

assessments of time value of money and the risks

specific to the asset. Where an asset does not

generate cash inflows largely independent of those

from other assets, the recoverable amount is

determined for the smallest group of assets that

generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-

generating unit).

(ii) Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an

impairment loss is reversed if there has been a

favourable change in the estimates used to

determine the recoverable amount. An impairment

loss in respect of goodwill is reversal only if the

loss was caused by a specific external event of an

exceptional nature that is not expected to recur,

and the increase in recoverable amount relates

clearly to the reversal of the effect of that specific

event.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the

asset’s carrying amount that would have been

determined had no impairment loss been recognised

in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are

credited to the income statement in the year in

which the reversals are recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
30th June, 2004
(Expressed in Renminbi)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(j) Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net

realisable value. Cost is calculated using the first-in-first-

out basis of accounting and comprises all costs of

purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in

bringing the inventories to their present location and

condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the

ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of

completion and the estimated costs necessary to make

the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those

inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in

which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of

any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and

all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in

the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of

any reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising

from an increase in net realisable value, is recognised as

a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as

an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

(k) Service contracts

The accounting policy for revenue derived from provision

of system design and integration services is set out in

note 1(p)(i). When the outcome of a service contract can

be estimated reliably, contract costs are recognised as

expense by reference to the stage of completion of the

contract activity at the balance sheet date. When it is

probable that total contract costs will exceed total

contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an

expense immediately. When the outcome of a service

contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract costs are

recognised as an expense in the period in which they are

incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
30th June, 2004

(Expressed in Renminbi)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k) Service contracts (Continued)

Service contracts in progress at the balance sheet date

are recorded in the balance sheet at the net amount of

costs incurred plus recognised profit less recognised losses

and progress billings, and are presented in the balance

sheet as the “Work in progress”. Progress billings not

yet paid by the customers are included in the balance

sheet under “Trade receivables”. Amounts received

before the related work is performed are included in the

balance sheet, as a liability, as “Receipts in advance”.

(l) Cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and

on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial

institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments

that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash

and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes

in value, having been within three months of maturity

at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on

demand and from an integral part of the Group’s cash

management are also included as a component of cash

and cash equivalents for the purpose of the cash flow

statement.

(m) Employee benefits

(i) Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, leave

passage and the cost of the Group of non-monetary

benefits are accrued in the year in which the

associated services are rendered by employees of

the Group. Where payment or settlement is deferred

and the effect would be material, these amounts

are stated at their present values.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
30th June, 2004
(Expressed in Renminbi)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m) Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii) Contributions to Mandatory Provident Funds as

required under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident

Fund Schemes Ordinance and a mandatory central

pension scheme organised by the People’s Republic

of China (“PRC”) government, are recognised as an

expense in the income statement are incurred, except

to the extent that they are included in the cost of

intangible assets and inventories not yet recognised

as an expense.

(iii) When the Group grants employees options to acquire

shares of the Company, no employee benefit cost

or obligation is recognised at the date of grant.

When the options are exercised, equity is increased

by the amount of the proceeds received.

(n) Income tax

(i) Income tax for the year comprises current tax and

movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.

Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets

and liabilities are recognised in the income statement

except to the extent that they relate to items

recognised directly in equity, in which case they are

recognised in equity.

(ii) Current tax is the expected tax payable on the

taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted

or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date,

and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of

previous years.

(iii) Deferred tax assets and liabil it ies arise from

deductible and taxable temporary differences

respectively, being the differences between the

carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial

reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax

assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused

tax credits.
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30th June, 2004

(Expressed in Renminbi)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n) Income tax (Continued)

(iii) (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that
may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of
existing taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as
the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
differences or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
difference arising from goodwill deductible for tax
purposes, negative goodwill treated as deferred
income, the initial recognition of assets or liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
(provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating to
investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in
the case of taxable differences, the Group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable that
the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, or in the case of deductible differences,
unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
30th June, 2004
(Expressed in Renminbi)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n) Income tax (Continued)

(iii) (Continued)

The amount of a deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed
at each balance sheet date and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow the related
tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is
reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.

(iv) Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets
are offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred
tax assets against deferred tax liabilities if, and only
if, the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the following additional
conditions are met:

– in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Company or the Group intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously; or

– in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

– the same taxable entity; or
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(Expressed in Renminbi)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n) Income tax (Continued)

(iv) (Continued)

– different taxable entities, which, in each

future period in which significant amounts

of deferred tax liabilities or assets are

expected to be settled or recovered, intend

to realise the current tax assets and settle

the current tax liabilities on a net basis or

realise and settled simultaneously.

(o) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing

or amount when the Company or the Group has a legal

or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past

event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits

will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable

estimate can be made. Where the time value of money

is material, provisions are stated at the present value of

the expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic

benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be

estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a

contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of

economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose

existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or

non-occurrence of one or more future events are also

disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability

of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when the outcome of a transaction

can be measured reliably and when it is probable that

the economic benefits associated with the transaction

will flow to the Group. Revenue is recognised in the

income statement as follows:

(i) Revenue from provision of system design and

integration services

Revenue arising from the provision of system design

and integration services is recognised by reference

to the stage of completion of the work at the

balance sheet date. Stage of completion is generally

determined by reference to the service performed

to date as a proportion of total services. Revenue is

usual ly recognised when the degree to the

completion is around 80% of the total project work.

Revenue is stated after deduction of PRC business

and value added taxes.

(ii) Revenue from provision of energy savings

services

Revenue from provision of energy savings services is

recognised based on energy savings derived from

meter readings which is taken to be the point in

time the customer has accepted it. Revenue is stated

after deduction of PRC business and value added

taxes.

(iii) Interest income

Interest income is accrued on a time-apportioned

basis by reference to the principal outstanding and

the interest rate applicable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
30th June, 2004

(Expressed in Renminbi)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(q) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets under operating

leases, payments made under the leases are charged to

the income statement in equal instalments over the

accounting periods covered by the lease term, except

where an alternative basis is more representative of the

pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.

(r) Translation of foreign currencies

Individual companies within the Group maintain their

books and records in the primary currencies of their

respective operations (“functional currencies”). In the

accounts of the individual companies, transactions in

other currencies during the year are translated into the

respective functional currencies at the applicable

exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary

assets and liabilities denominated in other currencies are

translated into their respective functional currencies at

the applicable exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet

date. Exchange gains and losses are dealt with in the

income statement of the individual companies.

The Group prepares consolidated financial statements in

Renminbi. For the purpose of consolidation, the results

of subsidiaries with functional currencies other than

Renminbi are translated into Renminbi at the average

exchange rates for the year; balance sheet items are

translated into Renminbi at the rates of exchange ruling

at the balance sheet date. The resulting exchange

differences are dealt with as a movement in the exchange

reserve. There was no material exchange difference

arising on translation during the years ended 30th June,

2004 and 2003.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
30th June, 2004
(Expressed in Renminbi)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in the income statement

in the period in which they are incurred, except to the

extent that they are capitalised as being directly

attributable to the acquisition, construction or production

of an asset which necessarily takes a substantial period

of time to get ready for its intended use or sale.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost

of a qualifying asset commences when expenditures for

the asset are being incurred, borrowing costs are being

incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare the

asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.

Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases

when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare

the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are

interrupted or completed.

(t) Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, parties

are considered to be related to the Group if the Group

has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the party

or exercise significant influence over the party in making

financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or where

the Group and the party are subject to common control

or common significant influence. Related parties may be

individuals or other entities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
30th June, 2004

(Expressed in Renminbi)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u) Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group

that is engaged either in providing products or services

(business segment), or in providing products or services

within a particular economic environment (geographical

segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that are

different from those of other segments.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial

reporting system, the Group has chosen business

segment information as the primary reporting format

and geographical segment information as the secondary

reporting format for the purpose of these financial

statements.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities

include items directly attributable to a segment as well

as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to

that segment. For example, segment assets may include

inventories, trade receivables and fixed assets. Segment

revenue, expenses, assets, and liabilities are determined

before intra-group balances and intra-group transactions

are eliminated as part of the consolidation process,

except to the extent that such intra-group balances and

transactions are between group enterprises within a

single segment. Inter-segment pricing is based on similar

terms as those available to other external parties.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred

during the period to acquire segment assets (both

tangible and intangible) that are expected to be used

for more than one period.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and

corporate assets, interest-bearing loans, borrowings,

corporate and financial expenses and minority interests.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
30th June, 2004
(Expressed in Renminbi)

2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

In prior years, deferred tax liabilities were provided using the

liability method in respect of the taxation effect arising from

all material timing differences between the accounting and

tax treatment of income and expenditure, which were expected

with reasonable probability to crystallise in the foreseeable

future. Deferred tax assets were not recognised unless their

realisation was assured beyond reasonable doubt. With effect

from 1st July, 2003, in order to comply with Statement of

Standard Accounting Practice 12 (Revised) “Income taxes”

issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants, the Group adopted a new policy for deferred

tax as set out in note 1(n). The adoption of this revised

accounting policy had no significant effect on the results and

net assets for the current and prior years. Accordingly, no

prior year adjustment was made.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
30th June, 2004

(Expressed in Renminbi)

3. TURNOVER

The Company acts as an investment holding company and

the Group is principally engaged in the provision of energy

efficiency solutions and engineering consulting services in

the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) including Hong Kong.

Turnover represents revenue arising from provision of system

design and integration and energy savings services, after

deduction of 5% PRC business tax and 6% to 17% PRC

value added tax. The amount of each significant category of

revenue recognised in turnover during the year is as follows:

"KL

The Group

º»»¼½ jkkoÜ

lCDEF Åyz�{

2004 2003

RMB’000 RMB’000

vw¥�«ïe Revenue from provision of system design

t�©°(ÎÏ and integration services 56,455 96,577

vwPQ©°(ÎÏ Revenue from provision of energy

savings services 3,050 557

59,505 97,134

4. OTHER REVENUE

"KL

The Group

º»»¼½ jkkoÜ

lCDEF Åyz�{

2004 2003

RMB’000 RMB’000

45ü�Î� Interest income from banks 915 511

0�ü�Î� Interest income from others – 636

�èè Handling fee income 221 –

56-r� Value added tax refunds 309 5

0� Others 26 –

1,471 1,152
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Notes to the Financial Statements
30th June, 2004
(Expressed in Renminbi)

5. PROFIT FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES
BEFORE TAXATION

Profit from ordinary activities before taxation is arrived at after

charging:

(a) Finance costs

"KL

The Group

º»»¼½ jkkoÜ

lCDEF Åyz�{

2004 2003

RMB’000 RMB’000

9Ý®Ü)RËF� Interest on bank loans wholly

(45��ü� repayable within five years 1,149 185

9Ý®Ü)RËF� Interest on coupon bonds wholly

(u�Ðpü� repayable within five years 806 620

45"Gü� Interest on bank overdrafts 188 27

0����% Other borrowing costs 205 3,397

v���% Total borrowing costs 2,348 4,229

(b) Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments)

"KL

The Group

º»»¼½ jkkoÜ

lCDEF Åyz�{

2004 2003

RMB’000 RMB’000

üuww�ï¥|}w� Contributions to defined

contribution plans 772 929

yÕ£Tye0�Dü Salaries, wages and other benefits 9,015 7,323

9,787 8,252
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Notes to the Financial Statements
30th June, 2004

(Expressed in Renminbi)

5. PROFIT FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES
BEFORE TAXATION (Continued)

(c) Other items

"KL

The Group

º»»¼½ jkkoÜ

lCDEF Åyz�{

2004 2003

RMB’000 RMB’000

G£�% Cost of inventories 17,060 32,602

±F�~¿ Amortisation of positive goodwill 2,521 –

�myF~¿ Amortisation of intangible assets 3,203 2,684

(uyF|} Depreciation of fixed assets 4,500 3,487

�m({vzxzÕ Operating lease rentals of premises 2,572 2,745

¾[e08�% Research and development costs 462 32

ÊËÌ�Õ Auditors’ remuneration 602 561

¨°¡©, Provision for bad and doubtful debts 959 2,692

2¢lN�w Net exchange loss 309 55

}À(uyFlN Loss on disposal of fixed assets 2 4

6. TAXATION

(a) Taxation in the consolidated income
statement represents

"KL

The Group

º»»¼½ jkkoÜ

lCDEF Åyz�{

2004 2003

RMB’000 RMB’000

Ü)ß?/m Provision for PRC enterprise income tax

#â-©,

S�}'ØÙ (iii)^ for the year (see note (iii) below) 624 469

5. ËÌûAÍ1eMNSè^
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6. Ì[
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Notes to the Financial Statements
30th June, 2004
(Expressed in Renminbi)

6. TAXATION (Continued)

(a) Taxation in the consolidated income
statement represents (Continued)

Notes:

(i) Overseas income tax

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda and is exempted

from taxation in Bermuda. The Company’s subsidiaries

established in the British Virgin Islands are incorporated

under the International Business Companies Acts of the

British Virgin Islands and, accordingly, are exempted from

British Virgin Islands income taxes.

(ii) Hong Kong profits tax

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as

the Group has no estimated assessable profits for the years

ended 30th June, 2004 and 2003.

(iii) PRC enterprise income tax

The Company’s subsidiaries established in the PRC are

foreign investment enterprises and are subject to PRC

enterprise income tax at a preferential rate of 15%.

However, they are exempted from PRC enterprise income

tax for two years starting from their first profit-making

year after offsetting prior years’ tax losses, and is entitled

to a 50% relief on PRC enterprise income tax for the

following three years.

Fujian Traving Science & Technology of Saving Development

Co., Ltd. (“Fujian Traving”) became profitable after

offsetting prior years’ losses in the year ended 30th June,

2000 and, accordingly Fujian Traving was chargeable to

PRC enterprise income tax at a rate of 7.5% for the years

ended 30th June, 2004 and 2003.

Hainan Creative Easy Union Science & Technology of Saving

Development Co., Ltd. (“Hainan Creative”) was exempted

from PRC enterprise income tax until 31st December, 2003

and was chargeable to PRC enterprise income tax at a rate

of 7.5% from 1st January, 2004 to 30th June, 2004.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
30th June, 2004

(Expressed in Renminbi)

6. TAXATION (Continued)

(a) Taxation in the consolidated income
statement represents (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(iii) PRC enterprise income tax (Continued)

No provision for PRC enterprise income tax has been made

for the year in the financial statements of Beijing Creative

Easy Union Science & Technology of Saving Development

Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Creative”), Shenzhen Creative Eternal

Well Science & Technology of Saving Development Co.,

Ltd. (“Shenzhen Creative”) and Fujian Creative New Era

Control Technology Co., Ltd. (“Fujian New Era”) as they

sustained loss for taxation purposes (2003: Nil).

(iv) PRC business and value added taxes

Fujian Traving and Hainan Creative are subject to PRC

business tax at 5% of the revenue from provision of system

design and integration and energy saving services. Beijing

Creative is subject to PRC value added tax (“VAT”) at 6%

to 17% of the revenue from provision of system design

and integration and energy saving services. Shenzhen

Creative is subject to PRC VAT at 6% of the revenue from

provision of system design and integration and energy

saving services.

6. Ì[Sè^
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Notes to the Financial Statements
30th June, 2004
(Expressed in Renminbi)

6. TAXATION (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

º»»¼½ jkkoÜ

2004 2003

lCDEF % Åyz�{ %

RMB’000 % RMB’000 %

'-%,ü Profit before tax 4,177 23,082

�-.-�ï!e Notional tax on profit

0'-%,ü before tax, calculated

(-3 at the applicable rates 355 8.5 3,293 14.3

{�P-� Tax effect of reduced

(-°AB tax rates (2,907) (69.6) (7,195) (31.2)

,�²¦0G Tax effect of non-deductible

(-°AB expenses 7 0.2 – –

,�I-ÎÏ Tax effect of non-taxable

(-°AB revenue (6) (0.1) (4) –

�{2�;�Ó. Tax effect of unused tax

-3lN losses not recognised

(-°AB 2,875 68.8 4,322 18.7

ñòZ�Éï Tax effect of HKGAAP

]t�6 adjustments

(-°AB 310 7.4 75 0.3

0� Others (10) (0.2) (22) (0.1)

�¾-°0G Actual tax expense 624 15.0 469 2.0

6. Ì[Sè^
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Notes to the Financial Statements
30th June, 2004

(Expressed in Renminbi)

7. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of

the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:

"KL

The Group

º»»¼½ jkkoÜ

lCDEF Åyz�{

2004 2003

RMB’000 RMB’000

©Õ Fees 254 254

yÕe0��Õ Salaries and other emoluments 1,180 1,557

r�ï¥w� Retirement scheme contributions 26 35

1,460 1,846

Included in the directors’ remuneration were fees of

approximately RMB127,000 (2003: RMB127,000) and

RMB127,000 (2003: RMB106,000) paid to each of the two

(2003: two) independent non-executive directors respectively

during the year. In addition, an independent non-executive

director received RMB21,000 and resigned during the year

ended 30th June, 2003.

During the year ended 30th June, 2004, the two (2003: two)

executive directors received emoluments of approximately

RMB734,000 (2003: RMB725,000) and RMB472,000 (2003:

RMB471,000) respectively. In addition, an executive director

received RMB396,000 and resigned during the year ended

30th June, 2003.

No directors waived any emoluments during the year. No

incentive payments for joining the Group or compensation

for loss of office was paid or is payable to any director for

the year ended 30th June, 2004 (2003: RMB Nil). Each of the

executive directors entered into a service contract with the

Company for a term of three years and these contracts shall

continue thereafter until terminated by either party giving to

the other not less than three months’ notice in writing.
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7. ÃÄ25Sè^

�Õ�N¦}As(`aÅËÂ}�

7. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued)

The remuneration of the directors is within the following

bands:

"KL

The Group

ÃÄlÖ `aÅË

Number of Number of

directors directors

Åyzk{8 RMB Nil – RMB1,060,000

Åyz1,060,000{ (equivalent to

Së2Ýxkò{ approximately

81,000,000ò{^ HK$Nil – HK$1,000,000) 4 6

8. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two

(2003: three) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed

in note 7. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the

other three (2003: two) individuals are as follows:

"KL

The Group

º»»¼½ jkkoÜ

lCDEF Åyz�{

2004 2003

RMB’000 RMB’000

yÕe0��Õ Salaries and other emoluments 1,045 751

r�ï¥w� Retirement scheme contributions 33 24

1,078 775

During the year ended 30th June, 2004, no emoluments were

paid to the five highest paid individuals (including directors

and other employees) as inducement to join or upon joining

the Group or as compensation for loss of office (2003:

RMB Nil).

8. ¹91lm

�®ÓfÃyÅ�ß/X#ÓSjkko

Ü�oÓ ¬̂`a/�K(�Õ¼½ÝØ

Ù7 R0õoÓSjkkoÜ�#Ó Å̂

�(�ÕvwÂ}�

Ýi8jkklÜmnopqrÜs/

%tu>�ü®ÓfÃyÅ�Sµ¶`

ae0��Æ Ĝµ�Õ|¬º®0;

�tu4Ý0;�tu�(6Ò/4|

¬¬ð­FSjkkoÜ�Åyzk

{ R̂
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8. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

The emoluments of the three (2003: two) individuals with the

highest emoluments are within the following bands:

"KL

The Group

lÖ ÅË

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

lCD»F< RMB Nil – RMB1,060,000

lCD1,060,000F (equivalent to

Së2Ýxkò{ approximately

81,000,000ò{^ HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000) 3 2

9. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

The consolidated profit attributable to shareholders includes

a loss of approximately RMB4,736,000 (2003: RMB10,400,000)

which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the

Company.

Reconciliation of the above amount to the Company’s loss for

the year:

º»»¼½ jkkoÜ

lCDEF Åyz�{

2004 2003

RMB’000 RMB’000

Ý%Z[¯°&9�� Amount of consolidated loss attributable to

(WÚ��Í� shareholders dealt with in the Company’s

lNËw financial statements (4,736) (10,400)

%¯NÜs(��,üE Final dividends from subsidiaries attributable

ÎáØ�Z[(µ�* to the profits of the previous financial year,

W�/¾Ý%Üs78e� approved and paid during the year – 23,320

%Z[(%ÜsSlN l̂

,üSØÙ29^ Company’s (loss)/profit for the year (note 29) (4,736) 12,920

8. ¹91lmSè^

�Õ�N¦}As(oÓSjkkoÜ�

#Ó f̂ÃyÅ�(ÅËÂ}�

9. ÁënìMN

WÚ��Í�,ü¾ï�%Z[¯°&

9ßxÅyz4,736,000 {(lNSj

kkoÜ�Åyz10,400,000{ R̂

qÃËw½%Z[%ÜslN($¡Â

}�
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10.EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on

the profit attributable to shareholders of approximately

RMB3,840,000 (2003: RMB22,613,000) and the

weighted average number of 429,549,000 (2003:

415,000,000) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

(b) Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share for the

year ended 30th June, 2004 is based on the profit

attr ibutable to shareholders of approximately

RMB3,840,000 and the weighted average number of

438,994,000 ordinary shares after adjusting for the

effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares under the

Company’s warrants.

Diluted earnings per share for the year ended 30th June,

2003 is not presented as there were no dilutive potential

ordinary shares in existence during the year ended 30th

June, 2003.

10. ÁÏN

(a)  ÁÃ"ÏN

�W¨%�üi�WÚ��,üx

¬Åyz3,840,000{Sjkko

Ü�Åyz22,613,000{ êÜ)¾

8 5 ¯ Ý W ( ; Ñ § � Ë

429,549,000WSj k k o Ü�

415,000,000W ï̂!R

(b)  Áß÷ÏN

�W~h�üi�i8jkklÜ

mnopqrÜs(WÚ��,ü

xÅyz3,840,000{/e¾85¯

ÝW(;Ñ§�Ë438,994,000W

¯ÝWS{%Z[�WÑo3}#

X�U�~h|.(¯ÝW�6

� ï̂!R

�Ýi8jkkoÜmnopqr

Üs>�G��U�~h|.(W

D/ð>��¼i8jkkoÜm

nopqrÜs(�W~h�üR
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10.EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

(c) Reconciliations

º»»¼½

ÁÝÖ(

2004

Number of shares

EÁ

’000

.|ï!�W¨%�ü( Weighted average number of ordinary shares

¯ÝW;Ñ§�Ë used in calculating basic earnings per share 429,549

þ¬¾85¯ÝW Deemed issue of ordinary shares 9,445

.|ï!�W~h�ü( Weighted average number of ordinary shares

¯ÝW;Ñ§�Ë used in calculating diluted earnings per share 438,994

11.SEGMENT REPORTING

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s

business and geographical segments. Business segment

information is chosen as the primary reporting format because

this is more relevant to the Group in making operating and

financial decisions.

(a) Business segment

Throughout the year, the Group has been operating in a

single business segment, i.e. the provision of energy

efficiency solutions and engineering consulting services.

Accordingly, no business segment information is

presented.

(b) Geographical segments

As all the Group’s revenue and results were substantially

derived from the PRC (including Hong Kong), no

geographical segment information is presented.

10. ÁÏNSè^

(c) ô:

11.àøÝª

¹9yz@%tu(m°e�J¹C|

}�&Rm°¹CyzqC¬³²�&

�äi�Ý�½%tu#|({ve¯

N�uÂ¬ëxR

(a) 1eàø

�6fÜs/%tu~Ñ{vî~

m°¹C/ÿvwQ��Ï¦��

§eT ¡¢©°/ð>��&m

°¹CyzR

(b) åeàø

�Ý%tu#XÎ�emó�³²

�[ß?Sµ¶ñò /̂ð>��&

�J¹CyzR
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12.FIXED ASSETS

The Group

ìù×1úû üý`£� þÿ !"`£� H,'Y äÖ
Furniture

Leasehold and Motor Plant and Construction
improvements equipment vehicles machinery in progress Total
Åyz�{ Åyz�{ Åyz�{ Åyz�{ Åyz�{ Åyz�{

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

!" Cost

ÝjkkoÜ At 1st July, 2003

<n~q 1,976 4,888 4,906 3,754 1,059 16,583

°m Additions

¸"�Îü – through acquisition

Ø�Z[ of subsidiaries – 92 120 – – 212

¸0� – others 252 265 167 2,750 560 3,994

}À Disposals – (3 ) – (982) (985)

:�çT  Transfer from

~©8h× construction-in-progress

e«, to plant and machinery – – – 1,074 (1,074) –

ÝjkklÜ

mnopq At 30th June, 2004 2,228 5,242 5,193 6,596 545 19,804

#Îàá Accumulated depreciation

ÝjkkoÜ At 1st July, 2003

<n~q 1,976 1,981 2,582 703 – 7,242

"�ÎüØ� Through acquisition of

Z[°m subsidiaries – 46 18 – – 64

%Üs±' Charge for the year 130 1,003 1,008 2,359 – 4,500

}Àd©û Written back on disposals – (1 ) – (486) – (487)

ÝjkklÜ

mnopq At 30th June, 2004 2,106 3,029 3,608 2,576 – 11,319

:$ÐÑ Net book value

ÝjkklÜ

mnopq At 30th June, 2004 122 2,213 1,585 4,020 545 8,485

ÝjkkoÜ

mnopq At 30th June, 2003 – 2,907 2,324 3,051 1,059 9,341

12.��;î

"KL
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13.INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The Group

ëZ%&

Energy saving technologies

-ñò2000. -+,�Õ. äÖ

SAVIN New

2000 Era Total

Åyz�{ Åyz�{ Åyz�{

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

!" Cost

ÝjkkoÜ<n~q At 1st July, 2003 26,540 – 26,540

"�ÎüØ�Z[°m Additions through acquisition

of subsidiaries – 3,000 3,000

ÝjkklÜ

mnopq At 30th June, 2004 26,540 3,000 29,540

#Îßÿ Accumulated amortisation

ÝjkkoÜ<n~q At 1st July, 2003 6,130 – 6,130

"�ÎüØ� Through acquisition

Z[ of subsidiaries – 536 536

%Üs±' Charge for the year 3,096 107 3,203

ÝjkklÜ

mnopq At 30th June, 2004 9,226 643 9,869

:$ÐÑ Net book value

ÝjkklÜ

mnopq At 30th June, 2004 17,314 2,357 19,671

ÝjkkoÜ

mnopq At 30th June, 2003 20,410 – 20,410

The amortisation charge for the year is included in “other

operating expenses” in the consolidated income statement.

13.��;î

"KL
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{v0G]3}R



¾¿ÀÁ()*+ Creative Energy Solutions Holdings Limited84

'(-Q\]
gjkklÜmnopq
S¦Åyz9?^

Notes to the Financial Statements
30th June, 2004
(Expressed in Renminbi)

14.GOODWILL

The Group

'�Þ

Positive

goodwill

Åyz�{

RMB’000

!" Cost

ÎüØ�Z[F(wA�%e Additions arising on acquisition of subsidiaries

ÝjkklÜmnopq and at 30th June, 2004 57,974

#Îßÿ Accumulated amortisation

%Üs±'e Charge for the year

ÝjkklÜmnopq and at 30th June, 2004 2,521

:$ÐÑ Net book value

ÝjkklÜmnopq At 30th June, 2004 55,453

Positive goodwill is recognised as an expense on a straight-

line basis over its estimated useful life of five to six years

from the date of acquisition. The amortisation of positive

goodwill for the year is included in “other operating

expenses” in the consolidated income statement.

15.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

"*+

The Company

º»»¼½ jkkoÜ

lCDEF Åyz�{

2004 2003

RMB’000 RMB’000

�qrWD/��% Unlisted shares, at cost 141,666 73,837

The underlying value of the subsidiaries is, in the opinion of

the Company’s directors, not less than their carrying value as

at 30th June, 2004 and 2003.

14.�Þ

"KL

±F�¦Ñä"�[Îüq*óï®8

mÜ( ï��.Ü*2�¬0GR%

Üs±F�~¿¾ï�Í�ÎÏ9\0

�{v0G]3}R

15.qOP*+3:;

%Z[`a�¬/JKØ�Z[(U�

û6>,PÝjkkoÜejkklÜ
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15.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Details of the subsidiaries as at 30th June, 2004 were as

follows:

'ìÁÔ�àI
Proportion of ownership interest

áâ!ÆØ °�fØ "KL3 "*+ OP*+
*+�( d1åæ áâ;"w) TUÔ¬ *( *( �¢1e

Place of Particulars of Group’s Held Held
incorporation/ issued capital/ effective by the by the

Name operations registered capital interest Company subsidiary Principal activities

Bell Investment Holdings (H.K.) British Virgin Islands/ 50,000 ordinary shares of 100% 100% – Investment holding

Limited Hong Kong US$1 each

â��ç»Él �W�61K{ �yVW

ñò (¯ÝW50,000 W

Easy Union Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands/ 50,000 ordinary shares of 100% 100% – Investment holding

Hong Kong US$1 each

â��ç»Él �W�61 K{ �yVW

ñò (¯ÝW50,000 W

Eternal Well Limited British Virgin Islands/ 50,000 ordinary shares of 100% 100% – Investment holding

Hong Kong US$1 each

â��ç»Él �W�61 K{ �yVW

ñò (¯ÝW50,000 W

Wealth Field Investment Limited British Virgin Islands/ 50,000 ordinary shares of 100% 100% – Investment holding

Hong Kong US$1 each

â��ç»Él �W�61 K{ �yVW

ñò (¯ÝW50,000 W

Rising Dragon International British Virgin Islands/ 100 ordinary shares of 100% 100% – Investment holding

Limited Hong Kong US$1 each

â��ç»Él �W�61 K{ �yVW

ñò (¯ÝW100 W

Success Field Limited British Virgin Islands/ 50,000 ordinary shares of 100% 100% – Investment holding

Hong Kong US$1 each

â��ç»Él �W�61 K{ �yVW

ñò (¯ÝW50,000 W

15.qOP*+3:;Sè^

ÝjkklÜmnopq(Ø�Z[£

éÂ}�
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'ìÁÔ�àI
Proportion of ownership interest

áâ!ÆØ °�fØ "KL3 "*+ OP*+
*+�( d1åæ áâ;"w) TUÔ¬ *( *( �¢1e

Place of Particulars of Group’s Held Held
incorporation/ issued capital/ effective by the by the

Name operations registered capital interest Company subsidiary Principal activities

China Meijia Education British Virgin Islands/ 50,000 ordinary shares of 75% 75% – Investment holding

Holdings Limited Hong Kong US$24 each

â��ç»Él �W�624K{(¯ÝW �yVW

ñò 50,000W

Creative New Era Technological British Virgin Islands 50,000 ordinary shares of 100% – 100% Not yet commenced

Limited (Formerly known as US$1 each  business

Creative ECO-Energy Textile

Machinery and Equipment

Manufacturing Limited)

Creative New Era Technological â��ç»É �W�61K{(¯ÝW ��vm

LimitedS%�Creative 50,000W

ECO-Energy Textile Machinery

and Equipment Manufacturing

Limited)

Creative Management Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of 100% 100% – Provision of

(Hong Kong) Limited HK$1 each administrative

services to the

Group

TUµ�Sñò^ ñò �W�61 ò{ ¬%tuvw

XYZ[ (¯ÝW2 W 5Nµ�©°

Creative ECO-Energy Investment Hong Kong 4,000,000 ordinary shares of 100% 100% – Provision of energy

Group Limited HK$1 each efficiency solutions

and engineering

consulting services

TU$EPQ�y ñò �W�61 ò{(¯ÝW vwQ��Ï

tuXYZ[ 4,000,000W ¦��§e

T ¡¢©°

15.qOP*+3:;Sè^

ÝjkklÜmnopq(Ø�Z[£

éÂ}�Sè^

15.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Details of the subsidiaries as at 30th June, 2004 were as

follows: (Continued)
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Creative Energy (Asia) Limited Hong Kong 500,000 ordinary shares of 60% – 60% Provision of energy

HK$1 each efficiency solutions

and engineering

consulting services

TUS0W X̂YZ[ ñò �W�61ò{( vwQ��Ï

¯ÝW500,000W ¦��§e

T ¡¢©°

Fujian Traving Science & The People’s Republic HK$15,000,000 100% – 100% Provision of energy

Technology of Saving of China efficiency solutions

Development Co., Ltd.* and engineering

(“Fujian Traving”) consulting services

Dçl6PQTR ßäÅyc©? 15,000,000 ò{ vwQ��Ï

8ÀXYZ[* ¦��§e

S\Dçl6]̂ T ¡¢©°

Beijing Creative Easy Union The People’s Republic HK$35,000,000 100% – 100% Provision of energy

Science & Technology of Saving of China efficiency solutions

Development Co. Ltd.* and engineering

(“Beijing Creative”) consulting services

=>TU)!PQTR ßäÅyc©? 35,000,000 ò{ vwQ��Ï

8ÀXYZ[* ¦��§e

S\=>TU]̂ T ¡¢©°

Hainan Creative Easy Union The People’s Republic HK$1,000,000 100% – 100% Provision of energy

Science & Technology of of China efficiency solutions

Saving Development Co., Ltd.* and engineering

(“Hainan Creative”) consulting services

1`TU)!PQTR ßäÅyc©? 1,000,000 ò{ vwQ��Ï

08XYZ[* ¦��§e

S\1`TU]̂ T ¡¢©°

'ìÁÔ�àI
Proportion of ownership interest

áâ!ÆØ °�fØ "KL3 "*+ OP*+
*+�( d1åæ áâ;"w) TUÔ¬ *( *( �¢1e

Place of Particulars of Group’s Held Held
incorporation/ issued capital/ effective by the by the

Name operations registered capital interest Company subsidiary Principal activities

15.qOP*+3:;Sè^

ÝjkklÜmnopq(Ø�Z[£

éÂ}�Sè^

15.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Details of the subsidiaries as at 30th June, 2004 were as

follows: (Continued)
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'ìÁÔ�àI
Proportion of ownership interest

áâ!ÆØ °�fØ "KL3 "*+ OP*+
*+�( d1åæ áâ;"w) TUÔ¬ *( *( �¢1e

Place of Particulars of Group’s Held Held
incorporation/ issued capital/ effective by the by the

Name operations registered capital interest Company subsidiary Principal activities

15.qOP*+3:;Sè^

ÝjkklÜmnopq(Ø�Z[£

éÂ}�Sè^

15.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Details of the subsidiaries as at 30th June, 2004 were as

follows: (Continued)

Shenzhen Creative Eternal Well The People’s Republic HK$10,000,000 100% – 100% Provision of energy

Science & Technology of  of China (of which HK$2,500,000 efficiency solutions

Saving Development Co., Ltd. * being paid up) and engineering

(“Shenzhen Creative”) consulting services

TU\]PQTR ßäÅyc©? 10,000,000 ò{ vwQ��Ï

S^_ X̂YZ[* S0ß2,500,000ò{¬§O^ ¦��§e

S\^_TU]̂ T ¡¢©°

Fujian Creative New Era The People’s Republic RMB10,000,000 75% – 75% Provision of energy

Control Technology Co., Ltd.* of China efficiency solutions

(Formerly known as Fujian and engineering

Shenzhou Electron Information consulting services

Technology Co., Ltd.) *

(“Fujian New Era”)

DçTUdeVfRgXYZ[* ßäÅyc©? Åyz10,000,000{ vwQ��Ï

S%�Dçýþñÿy! T ¡¢©°

RgXYZ[*

S\TUde]̂

* Registered under the laws of the PRC as foreign investment

enterprises

* |®ß?"¡ÙH¬Ay/m
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16.OTHER INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES

"KL "*+

The Group The Company

º»»¼½ jkkoÜ º»»¼½ jkkoÜ

lCDEF Åyz�{ lCDEF Åyz�{

2004 2003 2004 2003

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

��:; Investment securities

ÜqrXû Unlisted equity

op/��% securities, at cost 21,200 21,200 – –

ü#�yZ[ Loan to the investee

vw�� company 4,254 1,657 212 212

25,454 22,857 212 212

The loan to the investee company is unsecured, non-interest

bearing and has no fixed terms of repayment.

17.TRADE RECEIVABLES

At 30th June, 2004, the trade receivables were recoverable as

follows:

"KL

The Group

º»»¼½ jkkoÜ

lCDEF Åyz�{

2004 2003

RMB’000 RMB’000

~Ü) Within 1 year 37,360 41,726

~Ü�uÝ®Ü) After 1 year but within 5 years 12,675 21,597

®Ü� After 5 years 392 244

50,427 63,567

²�~«©, Less: General provision (2,521) (3,179)

47,906 60,388

²��ÎC)¡�( Less: Current portion of trade

ÿ*CDSØÙ20^ receivables (note 20) (37,360) (41,726)

Üÿ*CD Non-current portion 10,546 18,662

16.G���:;

ü#�yZ[vw��i�v�£¦�

e�(u��*R

17.n89&:®

ÝjkklÜmnopq/Ý}¼*�

Îû(�ÎC)¡�Â}�
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17.TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The repayment of the trade receivables is according to the

payment terms specified in each of the contracts. An ageing

analysis of gross trade receivables is as follows:

"KL

The Group

º»»¼½ jkkoÜ

lCDEF Åyz�{

2004 2003

RMB’000 RMB’000

~fn) Within 1 month 4,800 2,473

~8ofn 1 to 3 months 220 4,327

ofn�u More than 3 months but

pjfn) less than 12 months 6,620 35,065

pjfn�u More than 12 months but

jplfn) less than 24 months 27,786 21,702

jplfn� More than 24 months 11,001 –

50,427 63,567

18.INVENTORIES

"KL

The Group

º»»¼½ jkkoÜ

lCDEF Åyz�{

2004 2003

RMB’000 RMB’000

´°»G£/��% Consumable stores, at cost 480 428

As at 30th June, 2004 and 2003, none of inventories was

stated at estimated net realisable value.

19.WORK IN PROGRESS

Work in progress represents the amount of contract cost

incurred. All the amount are expected to be recovered within

one year.

17.n89&:®Sè^

�ÎC)¡�9�_D�x#Ìu(�

�Ü*F�R�ÎC)¡�vw(¡ª

¹ºÂ}�

18.æç

ÝjkklÜejkkoÜmnop

q/+�G£¾�¦ï�ÒÔ�6¼¡R

19.H,'Y

�çT É#FG(�x�%(ÕwR

#XÕw ï�Ý~Ü)ÎûR
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20.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

"KL "*+

The Group The Company

º»»¼½ jkkoÜ º»»¼½ jkkoÜ

lCDEF Åyz�{ lCDEF Åyz�{

2004 2003 2004 2003

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

�ÎØ�Z[ Amounts due from

�3 subsidiaries – – 86,910 93,225

zÕe0��Õ Rental and other

deposits 1,385 1,255 – –

�ÎC)¡� Trade receivables

SØÙ17^ (note 17) 37,360 41,726 – –

�Î�� Loan receivable 4,558 2,735 4,558 2,735

�Î³ËWÚ Amounts due from

�3 minority shareholders 3,758 – – –

�Îü� Interest receivable – 11 – –

0��Î�3 Other receivables 331 189 – –

¾ µ56- Value added tax prepaid 62 78 – –

 µ�3 Prepayments 790 302 196 158

48,244 46,296 91,664 96,118

Amounts due from subsidiaries and minority shareholders are

unsecured, non-interest bearing and have no fixed terms of

repayment.

Loan receivable is secured by 51% equity interest in unlisted

equity securities of the borrower, bears interest at 3% per

annum and has no fixed terms of repayment.

All of the trade and other receivables, apart from rental and

other deposits, are expected to be recovered within one year.

20.n89&`G�:®

�ÎØ�Z[e³ËWÚ�3i�v
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21.PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

"KL "*+

The Group The Company

º»»¼½ jkkoÜ º»»¼½ jkkoÜ

lCDEF Åyz�{ lCDEF Åyz�{

2004 2003 2004 2003

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

�øÀóï Maturing within three

ofn)5* months from

placement 10,655 11,669 – 1,060

�øÀóï Maturing after three

ofn�5* months from

placement 17,210 12,764 – –

27,865 24,433 – 1,060

These bank deposits have been pledged to banks for banking

facilities granted to the Group.

22.CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

"KL "*+

The Group The Company

º»»¼½ jkkoÜ º»»¼½ jkkoÜ

lCDEF Åyz�{ lCDEF Åyz�{

2004 2003 2004 2003

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Ý45(ÔÕ Cash at bank 86,072 113,760 1,877 10,476

��ÔÕ Cash on hand 204 233 – –

yF-Ð9) Cash and cash

(ÔÕe equivalents in the

ÔÕKû� balance sheet 86,276 113,993 1,877 10,476

45"G Bank overdrafts

SØÙ24^ (note 24) (5,270) (563)

ÝÔÕÖ×9 Cash and cash

(ÔÕe equivalents in

ÔÕKû� the cash

flow statement 81,006 113,430

21.°MNÜfæ®

JK45G�¾v��45/|¬��

%tu(45 y(v�»R
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23.TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

"KL "*+

The Group The Company

º»»¼½ jkkoÜ º»»¼½ jkkoÜ

lCDEF Åyz�{ lCDEF Åyz�{

2004 2003 2004 2003

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

�µC)¡� Trade payables 1,156 810 – –

¾Îá( µ�3 Receipts in advance 1,219 88 – –

�µ y�% Finance costs payable 1,157 784 496 620

0��µ�3 Other payables

e�ïè. and accruals 4,572 2,208 2,069 969

0��µ-3 Other tax payables 281 221 – –

�µØ�Z[�3 Amounts due

to subsidiaries – – 58,999 439

8,385 4,111 61,564 2,028

Amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest

bearing and have no fixed terms of repayment.

All the trade and other payables are expected to be settled

within one year. Included in trade and other payables are

trade payables with the following ageing analysis:

"KL

The Group

º»»¼½ jkkoÜ

lCDEF Åyz�{

2004 2003

RMB’000 RMB’000

Ý~fn)5*4�²`F� Due within 1 month or on demand 961 740

~fn�uofn)5* Due after 1 month but within 3 months 2 69

ofn�umfn)5* Due after 3 months but within 6 months 192 –

mfn�upjfn)5* Due after 6 months but within 12 months 1 1

1,156 810

23.n­9&`G�:®

�µØ�Z[�3i�v�£¦�e�

(u��*R
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24.BANK LOANS AND OVERDRAFTS

At 30th June, 2004, the analysis of bank loans and overdrafts

was as follows:

"KL

The Group

º»»¼½ jkkoÜ

lCDEF Åyz�{

2004 2003

RMB’000 RMB’000

45"G Bank overdrafts

¸¾v� – secured 5,270 557

¸�v� – unsecured – 6

5,270 563

¾v�45�� Secured bank loans 43,960 35,622

49,230 36,185

The loan facilities of certain subsidiaries are secured by bank

deposits with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately

RMB27,865,000 (2003: RMB24,433,000) at 30th June, 2004

and corporate guarantee given by the Company. Such loan

facilities, amounting to approximately RMB54,272,000 (2003:

RMB55,272,000), were utilised to the extent of approximately

RMB49,230,000 (2003: RMB36,179,000) at 30th June, 2004.

24.Üf�®`�%

ÝjkklÜmnopq/45��e
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�ïØ�Z[(45��¾�Ýjkk
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�Åyz54,272,000{SjkkoÜ�Å

yz55,272,000 { /̂i8jkklÜ

mnopq¾Ó.xÅyz49,230,000

{SjkkoÜ�Åyz36,179,000{ R̂



º»»¼½½ª Annual Report 2004 95

'(-Q\]
gjkklÜmnopq

S¦Åyz9?^

Notes to the Financial Statements
30th June, 2004

(Expressed in Renminbi)

25.INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET

(a) Income tax payable in the consolidated balance sheet

represents:

"KL

The Group

º»»¼½ jkkoÜ

lCDEF Åyz�{

2004 2003

RMB’000 RMB’000

çhó1'¸Ì PRC enterprise income tax

Ý<n~q At 1st July 71 295

Ü)©, Provision for the year 624 469

Ü)¾µ-3 Tax paid for the year (426) (693)

Ýmnopq At 30th June 269 71

(b) Deferred tax assets/liabilities not recognised:

At the balance sheet date, the Group and the Company

have not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of tax

losses of approximately RMB8,882,000 (2003:

RMB5,651,000) and approximately RMB3,091,000 (2003:

RMB2,068,000) respectively as it is not probable that

taxable profit will be available against which the tax losses

can be utilised. The tax losses do not expire under current

tax legislation.

The Group and the Company have no significant potential

deferred tax liabilities for the year and at the balance

sheet date.

25.;îGH�'+3'¸Ì

(a) ÝÍ�yF-Ð9#¼(�µ#â

-É�

(b) �Ç-3yFl-Ð>�Ô2��

Ý4!q/%tue%Z[>�2

�XxÔ3lN(�Ç-3yF¹

gxÅyz8,882,000{Sjkko

Ü�Åyz5,651,000{ êxÅy

z 3,091,000{Sjkk o Ü�
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26.COUPON BONDS

The 2.5% coupons bonds (the “Bonds”) with warrants

attached, having an aggregate principal amount of

US$4,500,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB37,206,000),

were issued on 1st November, 2002 and will mature on 1st

November, 2007. Each bond is in the denomination of

US$10,000 with a warrant attached. The Bonds bear interest

at the coupon rate of 2.5% per annum, payable annually in

arrears on 1st November each year. During the year ended

30th June, 2004, the principal amount of US$900,000

(equivalent to approximately RMB7,441,000) of the Bonds

were redeemed at par and at 30th June, 2004, the Bonds

were repayable as follows:

"KL`"*+

The Group and the Company

º»»¼½ jkkoÜ

lCDEF Åyz�{

2004 2003

RMB’000 RMB’000

~Ü) Within 1 year 7,441 7,441

~Ü�uÝ#Ü) After 1 year but within 2 years 7,441 7,441

#Ü�uÝ®Ü) After 2 years but within 5 years 14,883 22,324

29,765 37,206

²�u�Ðpÿ*CD Less: Current portion of coupon bonds (7,441) (7,441)

Üÿ*CD Non-current portion 22,324 29,765

As at 30th June, 2004, the holders of the Bonds (the

“Bondholders”) may elect to redeem the Bonds at par in

accordance with the following schedule:

�õAR Åyz�{

Date of redemption RMB’000

jkklÜp~n~q 1st November, 2004 7,441

jkk®Üp~n~q 1st November, 2005 7,441

jkkmÜp~n~q 1st November, 2006 7,441

jkk<Üp~n~q 1st November, 2007 7,442

29,765

26.�ôH�

%Õvw�4,500,000 K{Së2Ýx

Åyz37,206,000 { (̂Øþ�WÑo

2.5 �u�ÐpS\Ðp]̂ ¾Ýjkk

jÜp~n~q85>æÝjkk<Ü

p~n~q5*R�DÐpæ�10,000

K{ï!/>Ø�WÑoRÐp�i�Ü

ü�2.5 �ï�/�Ý_Üp~n~q

�ÜGµRi8jkklÜmnopq

rÜs/%Õw900,000K{Së2Ýx

Åyz7,441,000{ (̂Ðp��63

û/EÝjkklÜmnopq/Ðp(

��*Â}�

ÝjkklÜmnopq/Ðp(jX

ÅS\ÐpjXÅ]̂ �C��}¼d�
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26.COUPON BONDS (Continued)

In the event that if the Bondholders do not elect to redeem

the Bonds in accordance with the schedule mentioned above,

the Company will redeem the Bonds at par for the principal

amount outstanding on 1st November, 2007.

The Company may redeem all or part of the Bonds at any

time at par.

Further details of the redemption of the Bonds are set out in

the announcement dated 30th August, 2002 and dated 18th

November, 2002 issued by the Company.

27.SHARE CAPITAL

"KL`"*+

The Group and the Company

º»»¼½ jkkoÜ

2004 2003
ÁÝÖ( 5ê WDË» Õw

Number Number

of share Amount of share Amount

EÁ lCDEF �W Åyz�{

’000 RMB’000 ’000 RMB’000

�� Authorised:

¸�W�60.10 – Ordinary shares of

ò{Së2Ý HK$0.10 (equivalent

Åyz to approximately

0.106 {^ RMB0.106) each

(¯ÝW 1,000,000 106,000 1,000,000 106,000

°�f`,-Á" Issued and fully paid:

¸�W�60.10 – Ordinary shares of

ò{Së2Ý HK$0.10 (equivalent

Åyz0.106 {^ to approximately

(¯ÝW� RMB0.106) each

Ý<n~q At 1st July 415,000 43,990 415,000 43,990

|®kÅøÀ Issue of shares under a

85WDSØÙ^ private placement

(Note) 25,000 2,650 – –

Ýmnopq At 30th June 440,000 46,640 415,000 43,900

26.�ôH�Sè^

pÐpjXÅ>�C��qÃd�93

ûÐp/%Z[æ@Ýjkk<Üp~

n~q;�3û(%Õw/��63û

ÐpR

%Z[��d��63ûBC4CDÐ

pR

Xx3ûÐp(£é�Ý%Z[Ýjk

kjÜÏnopqejkkjÜp~n

pÏqÁ8(Z R̀
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27.SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Note:

On 19th November, 2003, Mr. Shum Fong Chung (“Mr. Shum”), a

director and a substantial shareholder of the Company, entered into

a placing agreement with a placing agent and a subscription

agreement with the Company, under which Mr. Shum placed

25,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company at a price of HK$0.25

(equivalent to approximately RMB0.265) per ordinary share and

subscribed for 25,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company at a

price of HK$0.25 (equivalent to approximately RMB0.265) per ordinary

share. The net proceeds of approximately HK$5,997,000 (equivalent

to approximately RMB6,357,000) were used for the expansion of the

Group’s business.

28.WARRANTS

The Company issued the coupon bonds (see note 26) with

warrants  attached.  The holders  of  warrants  ( the

“Warrantholders”) can exercise the subscription rights

attaching to the warrants, in whole or in part, at any time

from 1st November, 2002 to 1st November, 2007 (both days

inclusive) to subscribe for the shares of the Company

(“Subscription Shares”) by either (i) delivering the bonds, so

long as the bonds are not redeemed or (ii) paying the amount

for the subscription, at an exercise price subject to adjustment

(“Subscription Price”).

The number of Subscription Shares to which a Warrantholder

will be entitled for each warrant will be calculated by dividing

the nominal amount of US$10,000 by the Subscription Price.

Further detai ls  of the warrants are set out in the

announcement dated 30th August, 2002 and dated 18th

November, 2002 issued by the Company.

27.Á"Sè^

ØÙ�
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28.WARRANTS (Continued)

(a) Movements in warrants:

£ÁÔ�Ö(

Number of warrants

º»»¼½ jkkoÜ

2004 2003

Ý<n~q At 1st July 450 –

¾85 Issued – 450

Ýmnopq At 30th June 450 450

(b) Terms of unexpired and unexercised warrants at balance

sheet date:

£ÁÔ�Ö(

Number of warrants

Ó}AR f�R º»»¼½ jkkoÜ

Date of grant Exercisable period 2004 2003

jkkjÜp~n~q jkkjÜp~n~q

8jkk<Üp~n~q

1st November, 2002 1st November, 2002 –

1st November, 2007 450 450

28.£ÁÔ�Sè^
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29.RESERVES

(a) The Group

ó1

@.�� �ö��

$/�� Ã5 Ã5

ÁÝM¡ SØÙ (i)^ SØÙ (ii)^ SØÙ (iii)^ �0MN äê

Enterprise

General expansion

Merger reserve reserve

Share reserve fund fund Retained

premium (note (i)) (note (ii)) (note (iii)) profits Total

Åyz�{ Åyz�{ Åyz�{ Åyz�{ Åyz�{ Åyz�{

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ÝjkkjÜ

<n~q At 1st July, 2002 47,299 10,440 6,009 7,580 51,481 122,809

WÚ��,ü Profit attributable to

shareholders – – – – 22,613 22,613

tÜ¾78> Dividends approved

¾�µ(W� in respect of the

previous year – – – – (9,678 ) (9,678 )

~©[E²,ü Transfer from

retained profits – – 579 5,055 (5,634 ) –

ÝjkkoÜ

mnopqe

jkkoÜ At 30th June, 2003

<n~q and 1st July, 2003 47,299 10,440 6,588 12,635 58,782 135,744

"�kÅøÀ Premium on issue of shares 3,975 – – – – 3,975

85WD(,û under a private

SØÙ27^ placement (Note 27)

WD850G Share issuance expenses (268) – – – – (268 )

WÚ��,ü Profit attributable to

shareholders – – – – 3,840 3,840

~©[E²,ü Transfer from retained

profits – – 334 2,291 (2,625 ) –

ÝjkklÜ

mnopq At 30th June, 2004 51,006 10,440 6,922 14,926 59,997 143,291

29.��

(a) "KL
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29.RESERVES (Continued)

(a) The Group (Continued)

Notes:

(i) The Company was incorporated in Bermuda on 29th

August, 2001 under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda

and, through a group reorganisation in preparation for the

listing of the Company’s shares on the GEM of the Stock

Exchange, became the holding company of the Group on

3rd January, 2002. The Group has been treated as a

continuing entity and accordingly the consolidated financial

statements for the year ended 30th June, 2002 were

prepared on the basis that the Company was the holding

company of the Group for the entire year, rather than

from 3rd January, 2002. The merger reserve represents the

excess value of the shares acquired over the nominal value

of the shares issued in exchange.

(ii) According to the relevant rules and regulations in the PRC,

each of the PRC subsidiaries is required to appropriate

10% of after-tax profit (after offsetting prior years’ losses),

based on the PRC statutory financial statements prepared

in accordance with the relevant accounting principles and

financial regulations applicable to foreign investment

enterprises in the PRC, to a general reserve fund until the

balance of the fund reaches 50% of the PRC subsidiary’s

registered capital. Thereafter, any further appropriation can

be made at the directors’ discretion. The general reserve

fund can be utilised to offset prior years’ losses, or be

utilised to increase the capital on the condition that the

general reserve fund shall be maintained at a minimum of

25% of the registered capital after such increase.

The directors of Fujian Traving have proposed to transfer

10% of the profit after taxation to the general reserve

fund for the years ended 30th June, 2004 and 2003.

29.��Sè^
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29.RESERVES (Continued)

(a) The Group (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(ii) (Continued)

The directors of Hainan Creative determined not to make

any appropriation to the general reserve fund for the year

ended 30th June, 2004 and 2003 because the balance of

such fund as at 30th June, 2004 and 2003 has reached

50% of its registered capital.

The directors of Beijing Creative, Shenzhen Creative and

Fujian New Era determined not to make any appropriation

to the general reserve fund as these subsidiaries have

sustained loss for the year ended 30th June, 2004 and

2003.

(iii) According to the relevant rules and regulations in the

PRC and the PRC subsidiary’s articles of association. Each

of PRC subsidiaries may appropriate a portion of its after-

tax profit (after offsetting prior years’ losses), based on

the statutory financial statements of the PRC subsidiary,

to an enterpr ise expansion reserve fund. Such

appropriations are determined at the discretion of the

directors.

The directors of Fujian Traving and Hainan Creative have

proposed to transfer 10% of the profit after taxation to

the enterprise expansion reserve fund for the years ended

30th June, 2004 and 2003.

The directors of Beijing Creative, Shenzhen Creative and

Fujian New Era determined not to make any appropriation

to the enterprise expansion reserve fund as those

subsidiaries have sustained loss for the year ended 30th

June, 2004 and 2003.
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29.RESERVES (Continued)

(b) The Company

,#Îãä/Ø

�0MN $Î

(Accumulated

ÁÝM¡ ,ÕÏ� losses)/

Share Contributed retained

premium surplus profits Total

Åyz�{ Åyz�{ Åyz�{ Åyz�{

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ÝjkkjÜ

<n~q At 1st July, 2002 47,299 50,453 (2,515) 95,237

WÚ��,ü Profit attributable to shareholders – – 12,920 12,920

tÜ¾78> Dividends approved

¾�µ(W� in respect of the previous year – – (9,678) (9,678)

ÝjkkoÜ

mnopqe

jkkoÜ

<n~q At 30th June, 2003 and 1st July, 2003 47,299 50,453 727 98,479

"�kÅøÀ Premium on issue of shares under

85WD(,û a private placement

SØÙ27^ (Note 27) 3,975 – – 3,975

WD85(0G Share issuance expenses (268) – – (268)

WÚ��lN Loss attributable to shareholders – – (4,736) (4,736)

ÝjkklÜ

mnopq At 30th June, 2004 51,006 50,453 (4,009) 97,450

The application of the share premium account is governed

by the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (“Companies

Act”).

Pursuant to a group reorganisation, the Company became

the holding company of the Group on 3rd January, 2002.

The excess of the consolidated net assets represented by

the shares acquired over the nominal value of the shares

issued by the Company in exchange under the group

reorganisation during the year ended 30th June, 2002

was transferred to contributed surplus. Contributed

surplus is available for distribution to shareholders subject

to the provisions of section 54 of the Companies Act.

29.��Sè^

(b) "*+

WD,û¡(�.i?ÿ!�~�Ï~

ÜZ["S\Z["]̂ #sµR

|®tu�3/%Z[ÝjkkjÜ~
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29.RESERVES (Continued)

(b) The Company (Continued)

As at 30th June, 2004, in the opinion of the directors of

the Company, the reserves of the Company available for

distribution to shareholders amounted to approximately

RMB 46,444,000 (2003: RMB51,180,000) subject to the

restriction stated above.

30.EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme

(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory

Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed

under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment

Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined contributed

retirement scheme administered by an independent approved

MPF trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its

employees are each required to make contributions to the

scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to

a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$20,000.

Contributions to the MPF Scheme vest immediately.

The Company’s subsidiaries established in the PRC participates

in a mandatory central pension scheme organised by the PRC

government for certain of its employees, the assets of which

are held separately from those of the Group. Contributions

made are based on a percentage of the eligible employees’

salaries and are charged to the income statement as they

became payable, in accordance with the rules of the scheme.

The employers’ contributions vest fully once they are made.

Under the above scheme, retirement benefits of existing and

retired employees are payable by the relevant scheme

administrators and the Group has no further obligations

beyond the annual contributions.

The Group does not have any other pension schemes for its

employees in respect of the subsidiaries outside Hong Kong

and PRC. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the

Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at

30th June, 2004 in respect of the retirement of its employees.

29.��Sè^

(b) "*+Sè^

%Z[`a�¬/ÝjkklÜm
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31.EQUITY COMPENSATION BENEFITS

The Company has an employee share option scheme which

was adopted on 3rd January, 2002 whereby the directors of

the Company are authorised, at their discretion, to invite

employees of the Group, including directors of any company

in the Group, to take up options to subscribe for shares of

the Company. The subscription price of options is determined

by the board of directors of the Company and will not be less

than the highest of (i) the nominal value of the Company’s

shares, (ii) the average closing price of the shares quoted on

the GEM of the Stock Exchange for the five trading days

immediately preceding the date of grant and (iii) the closing

price of the shares on the GEM of Stock Exchange on the

date of grant. The options vest after one to four years from

the date of grant and are then exercisable within a period up

to 2nd January, 2012. A nominal consideration of HK$1

(equivalent to approximately RMB1) is payable on acceptance

of the grant of options. Each option gives the holder the

right to subscribe for one share.

(a) Movements in share options

QÁÔÖ(

Number of options

º»»¼½ jkkoÜ

2004 2003

Ý<n~q At 1st July 14,732,000 –

¾85 Issued – 14,732,000

¾O� Lapsed (600,000) –

Ýmnopq At 30th June 14,132,000 14,732,000

ÝmnopqÚ�(

üWÑ Options vested at 30th June 3,533,000 –

31.ÁÔ12Îð

%Z[ÝjkkjÜ~noq�V~3

�ÆüWÑï¥/®h/%Z[`aÔ�
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31.EQUITY COMPENSATION BENEFITS
(Continued)

(b) Terms of unexpired and unexercised share
options at balance sheet date

QÁÔÖ(

Number of options

Ó}AR f�R f�¡ º»»¼½ jkkoÜ

Exercise

Date of grant Exercise period price 2004 2003

4th April, 2004 4th April, 2004 to HK$0.30 3,533,000 3,683,000

jkklÜ 2nd January, 2012 0.30 ò{

lnlq jkklÜlnlq8

jk~jÜ~njq

4th April, 2004 4th April, 2005 to HK$0.30 3,533,000 3,683,000

jkklÜ 2nd January, 2012 0.30 ò{

lnlq jkk®Ülnlq8

jk~jÜ~njq

4th April, 2004 4th April, 2006 HK$0.30 3,533,000 3,683,000

jkklÜ to 2nd January, 2012 0.30 ò{

lnlq jkkmÜlnlq8

jk~jÜ~njq

4th April, 2004 4th April, 2007 HK$0.30 3,533,000 3,683,000

jkklÜ to 2nd January, 2012 0.30 ò{

lnlq jkk<Ülnlq8

jk~jÜ~njq

14,132,000 14,732,000

31.ÁÔ12ÎðSè^
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32.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year ended 30th June, 2004. the Group acquired

75% equity interest and 60% equity interest in China Meijia

Education Holdings Limited and Creative Energy (Asia) Limited

at a consideration of HK$60,000,000 (equivalent to

approximately RMB63,600,000) and of HK$300,000

(equivalent to approximately RMB318,000) respectively.

äÖ

Total

Åyz�{

RMB’000

°8Q3Ð;î Net assets acquired

(uyF Fixed assets 148

�myF Intangible assets 2,464

�Î³ËWÚÑÏ Due from minority shareholders 3,758

 µ�3e0��Î� Prepayments and other receivables 1,584

45e��ÔÕ Cash at bank and on hand 246

�µ�3e�ïè. Creditors and accrued charges (103)

0��µ-3 Other tax payables (66)

²�³ËWÚÑÏ Less: Minority interests (2,087)

��O·(�yF Net identifiable assets 5,944

Í�¡»FG(±F� Positive goodwill arising on consolidation 57,974

¾µvü2û/¦ÔÕFµ Total purchase price paid, satisfied in cash 63,918

²�#ÎüØ�Z[(ÔÕ Less: Cash of the subsidiaries acquired (246)

ü�Ø�Z[(ÔÕe Net cash outflow of cash and cash equivalents in

ÔÕKû�(ÔÕÖ}�w respect of the purchase of subsidiaries 63,672

32.8QOP*+

i8jkklÜmnopqrÜs/%

tu¹gÎüß?K;��VWXYZ

[eTUS0W X̂YZ[( 75%e

60%WÑ/eû¹g¬60,000,000ò{

Së2ÝxÅyz 63,600,000{^e

300,000ò{Së2ÝxÅyz318,000

{ R̂
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33.COMMITMENTS

(a) Capital commitments outstanding at 30th June, 2004

not provided for in the financial statements were as

follows:

"KL

The Group

º»»¼½ jkkoÜ

lCDEF Åyz�{

2004 2003

RMB’000 RMB’000

¾[e083» Research and development project

¸¾©Ñe¾Ìx – authorised and contract for 1,200 –

33.��

(a) ÝjkklÜmnopq>�Ý¯

°&9|}©,(�F�y%PQ

Â}�

(b) At 30th June, 2004, the total future minimum lease

payments under non-cancellable operating leases in

respect of rented premises were payable as follows:

"KL "*+

The Group The Company

º»»¼½ jkkoÜ º»»¼½ jkkoÜ

lCDEF Åyz�{ lCDEF Åyz�{

2004 2003 2004 2003

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

~Ü) Within 1 year 1,322 558 – 95

~Ü�uÝ®Ü) After 1 year but

within 5 years 436 138 – –

1,758 696 – 95

(b) ÝjkklÜmnopq/|®,

�¸¿{vzx9Gµ(q�fP

zxzÕÂ}�

34.CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 30th June, 2004, there were contingent liabilities in respect

of banking facilities utilised by certain wholly owned

subsidiaries and guaranteed by the Company amounting to

approximately RMB52,728,000 (2003:36,179,000).

35.COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform

with the current year’s presentation.

34.g�GH

ÝjkklÜmnopq/@�ïBy

Ø�Z[#Ó.>�%Z[|}QE(

45��#PQ(4\-Ðx¬Åyz

52,728,000{SjkkoÜ�Åyz

36,179,000 R̂

35.I�Ö5
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~���Ü

lnjpq8

jkkkÜ

;<=>?@AB½í mnopq

º»»¼½ jkkoÜ jkkjÜ jkk~Ü r*�

lCDEF Åyz�{ Åyz�{ Åyz�{ Åyz�{

Period from

Years ended 30th June 20/4/1999

2004 2003 2002 2001 to 30/6/2000

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

1ó Results

vmw Turnover 59,505 97,134 117,599 31,899 4,478

{v,ü Profit from operations 6,525 27,311 49,407 16,933 534

 y�% Finance costs (2,348) (4,229 ) (130 ) (193 ) (31 )

'-%qDm°,ü Profit from ordinary

activities before

taxation 4,177 23,082 49,277 16,740 503

-3 Taxation (624) (469 ) (1,450 ) – –

'-�qDm°,ü Profit from ordinary

activities after taxation 3,553 22,613 47,827 16,740 503

³ËWÚÑÏ Minority Interests 287 – – – –

WÚ��,ü Profit attributable

to shareholders 3,840 22,613 47,827 16,740 503

W� Dividend – – 9,678 – –

lCDRMB ÅyzRMB ÅyzRMB ÅyzRMB ÅyzRMB

�W�ü Earnings per share

¹  ¨% – Basic 0.89 àcents 5.45 ¹cents 13.74 ¹cents 5.58 ¹cents 0.17 ¹cents

¹  ~h – Diluted 0.87 àcents ,-.  N/A ,-.  N/A ,-.  N/A ,-.  N/A

;îaGH Assets and liabilities

(uyF Fixed assets 8,485 9,341 7,380 6,299

0�ÜÖÓyF Other non-current assets 111,124 61,929 58,910 13,150

ÖÓyF�6 Net current assets 94,446 138,229 100,509 8,753

ÜÖÓ-Ð Non-current liabilities (22,324) (29,765 ) – –

³ËWÚÑÏ Minority Interests (1,800) – – –

yF�6 Net assets 189,931 179,734 166,799 28,202

W% Share capital 46,640 43,990 43,990 10,959

1, Reserves 143,291 135,744 122,809 17,243

189,931 179,734 166,799 28,202

Note: The Reorganisation referred to the Company’s prospectus dated

24th January, 2002 has been reflected in the financial summary by

treating the Company as having been the holding company of the

Group for the earliest period presented.

ØÙ� ¯°+²iª«%Z[Ý�¼(f:Éï

*ó~Ñ¬%tu(VWZ[¦CT%Z

[ÝjkkjÜ~njplqÁ8(ºW

Â #Ã(�3R



¾¿ÀÁ()*+ Creative Energy Solutions Holdings Limited110

_`abcId.
NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting (the

“Meeting”) of Creative Energy Solutions Holdings Limited (the

“Company”) will be held at Rooms 1405-06, Harbour Centre, 25

Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong on Thursday, 28th October,

2004 at 10:00 a.m. for the following purposes:

1. To receive and approve the audited financial statements and

the reports of the directors and auditors of the Company (the

“Directors” and the “Auditors”, respectively) for the year

ended 30th June, 2004;

2. To re-elect the retiring Directors and to authorise the Board of

Directors (the “Board”) to fix the remuneration of the Directors;

3. To re-appoint Auditors and to authorise the Board to fix their

remuneration; and

As special businesses, to consider and, if thought fit, pass with or

without amendments the following resolutions as Ordinary

Resolutions:

4A. “THAT:

(a) subject to paragraph (c) below, the exercise by the

Directors during the Relevant Period of all the powers of

the Company to purchase shares (each a “Share”) on

the GEM of the Stock Exchange or on any other stock

exchange on which the securities of the Company may

be listed and recognised by the Securities and Futures

Commission of Hong Kong and the Stock Exchange for

this purpose, subject to and in accordance with all

applicable laws and requirements of the Rules Governing

the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange

(as amended from time to time) or of any other stock

exchange be and is hereby generally and unconditionally

approved;

(b) the approval in paragraph (a) shall be in addition to any

other authorisation given to the Directors and shall

authorise the Directors on behalf of the Company during

the Relevant Period to procure the Company to purchase

Shares at a price determined by the Directors;

6�ÀTUVWXYZ[S\%Z[]̂ �Ì

ÝjkklÜpnjpÏqS-*l q̂ºp
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(c) the aggregate nominal amount of the Shares which are

authorised to be purchased by the Directors pursuant to

the approval in paragraph (a) above shall not exceed

10% of the aggregate nominal amount of the share

capital of the Company in issue as at the date of passing

of this resolution, and the said authority shall be limited

accordingly;

(d) for the purposes of this resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the date of

passing of this resolution until whichever is the earliest

of:

(i) the conclusion of the next annual general meeting

of the Company;

(ii) the expiration of the period within which the next

annual general meeting of the Company is required

by the Company’s bye-laws, the Bermuda’s

Companies Act or any other applicable law of

Bermuda to be held; and

(iii) the date upon which the authority set out in this

resolution is revoked or varied by way of ordinary

resolution of the Company in general meeting.”

4B. “THAT:

(a) subject to paragraph (c) below, the exercise by the

Directors during the Relevant Period of all the powers of

the Company to allot, issue and deal with additional

shares (each a “Share”) in the capital of the Company

and to make or grant offers, agreements, options and

rights of exchange or conversion which might require

the exercise of such powers be and is hereby generally

and unconditionally approved;

(b) the approval in paragraph (a) shall be in addition to any

other authorisation given to the Directors and shall

authorise the Directors during the Relevant Period to make

or grant offers, agreements, options and rights of

exchange or conversion which might require the exercise

of such powers after the end of the Relevant Period;

(c) `a|®q'(a)�(78Ô�Ñü

û(WD�6vw/,â��%Z

[Ý%��§ÔÝ�q*(¾85
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(d) @%��§E¬�

\Xx*�]É�%��§ÔÝ�

(q8}¼f:q*¬r(*��

(i) %Z[}�WÚÛÜ�É4s

d�

(ii) %Z[|®Z[4t£ÿ!�

Z["4ÿ!�:;0�-

."¡su%Z[9W0}
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(c) the aggregate nominal amount of share capital allotted

or agreed conditionally or unconditionally to be allotted

(whether pursuant to an option or otherwise) by the

Directors pursuant to the approval granted in paragraph

(a), otherwise than pursuant to (i) a Rights Issue, or (ii)

the share option scheme of the Company approved by

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM

of the Stock Exchange, or (iii) any scrip dividend or similar

arrangement providing for the allotment of shares in lieu

of the whole or part of a dividend on Shares in accordance

with the Company’s bye-laws, shall not exceed 20% of

the aggregate nominal amount of the issued share capital

of the Company as at the date of passing of this

resolution, and the said approval shall be limited

accordingly; and

(d) for the purposes of this resolution:

“Relevant Period” shall have the same meaning as

ascribed to it under resolution set out in paragraph 4A(d)

of the notice convening this Meeting; and

“Rights Issue” means an offer of Shares open for a period

fixed by the Directors to holders of Shares on the register

on a fixed record date in proportion to their then holdings

of the Shares (subject to such exclusions or other

arrangements as the Directors may deem necessary or

expedient in relation to fractional entitlements or having

regard to any restrictions or obligations under the laws

or any relevant jurisdiction, or the requirements of any

recognised regulatory body or any stock exchange, in

any territory outside Hong Kong).”

4C. “THAT:

conditional upon the passing of the resolutions set out in

paragraphs 4A and 4B of the notice convening the Meeting,

the general mandate granted to the Directors pursuant to the

resolution set out in paragraph 4B of the notice convening

the Meeting be and is hereby extended by the addition thereto

of an amount representing the aggregate nominal amount of

share capital of the Company purchased by the Company

under the authority granted pursuant to the resolution set

out in paragraph 4A of the notice convening the Meeting,

provided that such amount shall not exceed 10% of the

aggregate nominal amount of the issued share capital of the

Company as at the date of passing of this resolution.”
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As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass the

following resolution as a Special Resolution:

5. “THAT the Bye-laws of the Company be amended as follows:

Bye-law 1

(a) By inserting the following new definition of “associate”

after the definition of “Act” in existing Bye-law 1:

““associate” the meaning attributed to it in the rules

of the Designated Stock Exchange.”

(b) By deleting the words “a recognised clearing house within

the meaning of Section 2 of the Securities and Futures

(Clearing Houses) Ordinance of Hong Kong or” from the

definition of “clearing house” in existing Bye-law 1.

Bye-law 76

(a) By re-numbering existing Bye-law 76 as Bye-law 76(1);

(b) By inserting the following as new Bye-law 76(2):

“(2) Where the Company has knowledge that any

Member is, under the rules of the Designated Stock

Exchange, required to abstain from voting on any

particular resolution of the Company or restricted

to voting only for or only against any particular

resolution of the Company, any votes cast by or on

behalf of such Member in contravention of such

requirement or restriction shall not be counted.”

Bye-law 86(2)

By deleting the words “, subject to authorisation by the

Members in general meeting,” in the second and third lines

in existing Bye-law 86(2).
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Bye-law 86(4)

(a) By deleting the words “Subject to any provision to the

contrary in these Bye-laws the” and replacing therewith

the word “The” at the beginning of existing Bye-law

86(4);

(b) By deleting the word “special” and replacing therewith

the word “ordinary” in the second line in existing Bye-

law 86(4).

Bye-law 88

By deleting the existing Bye-law 88 in its entirety and replacing

therewith the following new Bye-law 88:

“88. No person other than a Director retiring at the meeting

shall, unless recommended by the Directors for election,

be eligible for election as a Director at any general

meeting unless a Notice signed by a Member (other than

the person to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and

vote at the meeting for which such notice is given of his

intention to propose such person for election and also a

Notice signed by the person to be proposed of his

willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the

head office or at the Registration Office provided that

the minimum length of the period, during which such

Notice(s) are given, shall be at least seven (7) days and

that (if the Notice(s) are submitted after the dispatch of

the notice of the general meeting appointed for such

election) the period for lodgment of such Notice(s) shall

commence on the day after the dispatch of the notice of

the general meeting appointed for such election and end

no later than seven (7) days prior to the date of such

general meeting.”
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Bye-law 102

By deleting the existing Bye-law 102 in its entirety and

replacing therewith the following new Bye-law 102:

102. A Director who, to his knowledge, is interested or any of

his associates who, to the Director’s knowledge, is

interested, in any way, whether directly or indirectly, in a

contract or arrangement or proposed contract or

arrangement with the Company shall declare the nature

of his interest or the interest of his associate(s) at the

meeting of the Board at which the question of entering

into the contract or arrangement is first considered, if he

knows his interest or the interest of his associate(s) then

exists, or in any other case at the first meeting of the

Board after he knows that he or his associate(s) is or has

become so interested. For the purposes of this Bye-law,

a general Notice to the Board by a Director to the effect

that:

(a) he is a member or officer of a specified company or

firm and he or any of his associates is to be regarded

as interested in any contract or arrangement which

may after the date of the Notice be made with that

company or firm; or

(b) he or any of his associates is to be regarded as

interested in any contract or arrangement which may

after the date of the Notice be made with a specified

person who is connected with him or any of his

associates;

shall be deemed to be a sufficient declaration of interest

under this Bye-law in relation to any such contract or

arrangement, provided that no such Notice shall be

effective unless either it is given at a meeting of the

Board or the Director takes reasonable steps to secure

that it is brought up and read at the next Board meeting

after it is given.

Z[4tX102¶

Â'ÔXZ[4tX102¶B'/>¦}

¼6Z[4tX102¶e¾�

102.p`a2d�R040:;!/Å

�Ý%Z[#Ì/4ç�Ì/(�

x4ØR�0ßX:;ÑU4�U

(üÏxã/Ç9Ýgý¤¥Ì/

J�x4ØR(`aÉÉ�qV=

040!/Å�(üÏ3�Rp`

a0���040!/Å�½J�

x4ØRXüÏxã/t9Ý�R

h3üÏxã�(gý`aÉÉ�

qV=040!/Å�(üÏ3

�R@hE¬/̀ a9ü`aÉ8}

~«Ý�/¦9=¦})*�

(a) 0¬ÉuZ[4hc(WÚ4

ÃÄðÆE040:;!/

Å�qþ¬Ý8}Ý�2q

�½JZ[4hcÌ/(�

x4ØRßXüÏxã�4

(b) 040!/Å�qþ¬Ý8}

Ý�2q�½040!/Å

�X!/(ÉuxQÅ�Ì

/(:;�x4ØRßXü

Ïxã�

t9|®%4tqþ¬Xx:;J

K�x4ØR(üÏxã(ùD<

=�î'ÜJÝ'Ý`aÉÉ�q

8}4`a¾�á���¤2Eæ

Ý8}Ý��}~ý`aÉÉ�q

v�e�æ/öt+�:;��X

�VR



¾¿ÀÁ()*+ Creative Energy Solutions Holdings Limited116

_`abcId.
NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Bye-law 103

By deleting the existing Bye-law 103 in its entirety and

replacing therewith the following new Bye-law 103:

103. (a) A Director shall not vote (nor be counted in the

quorum) on any resolution of the Board approving

any contract or arrangement or any other proposal

in which he or any of his associates is materially

interested, but this prohibition shall not apply to

any of the following matters namely:

(i) any contract or arrangement for the giving to

such Director or his associate(s) any security or

indemnity in respect of money lent by him or

any of his associates or obligations incurred or

undertaken by him or any of his associates at

the request of or for the benefit of the

Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(ii) any contract or arrangement for the giving of

any security or indemnity to a third party in

respect of a debt or obligation of the Company

or any of its subsidiaries for which the Director

or his associate(s) has himself/themselves

assumed responsibility in whole or in part

whether alone or jointly under a guarantee or

indemnity or by the giving of security;

(iii) any contract or arrangement concerning an

offer of shares or debentures or other securities

of or by the Company or any other company

which the Company may promote or be

interested in for subscription or purchase, where

the Director or his associate(s) is/are or is/are to

be interested as  a  part ic ipant  in  the

underwriting or sub-underwriting of the offer;
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(iv) any contract or arrangement in which the

Director or his associate(s) is/are interested in

the same manner as other holders of shares or

debentures or other securities of the Company

by virtue only of his/their interest in shares or

debentures or other securities of the Company;

(v) any contract or arrangement concerning any

other company in which the Director or his

associate(s) is/are interested only, whether

directly or indirectly, as an officer or executive

or a member or in which the Director and any

of his associates are not in aggregate

beneficially interested in five (5) per cent or

more of the issued shares or of the voting rights

of any class of shares of such company (or any

third company through which his interest or

that of any of his associates is derived); or

(vi) any proposal or arrangement concerning the

adoption, modification or operation of a share

option scheme, a pension fund or retirement,

death or disability benefits scheme or other

arrangement which relates both to directors,

his associates and employees of the Company

or of any of its subsidiaries and does not provide

in respect of any Director, or his associate(s),

as such any privilege or advantage not accorded

generally to the class of persons to which such

scheme or fund relates.
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(b) A company shall be deemed to be a company in

which a Director and/or his associate(s) owns five

(5) per cent. or more if and so long as (but only if

and so long as) he and/or his associates, (either

directly or indirectly) are the holders of or beneficially

interested in five (5) per cent. or more of any class

of the equity share capital of such company or of

the voting rights available to members of such

company (or of any third company through which

his interest or that of any of his associates is derived).

For the purpose of this paragraph there shall be

disregarded any shares held by a Director or his

associate(s) as bare or custodian trustee and in which

he or any of them has no beneficial interest, any

shares comprised in a trust in which the interest of

the Director or his associate(s) is/are in reversion or

remainder if and so long as some other person is

entitled to receive the income thereof, and any shares

comprised in an authorised unit trust scheme in

which the Director or his associate(s) is/are interested

only as a unit holder and any shares which carry no

voting right at general meetings and very restrictive

dividend and return of capital right.

(c) Where a company in which a Director and/or his

associate(s) holds five (5) per cent. or more is

materially interested in a transaction, then that

Director and/or his associate(s) shall also be deemed

materially interested in such transaction.
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XxÎ� ê3�Ô�Ñî�

�µï¥(:;WDSE`a

40!/Å�_|¬î�j

XÅ$XÑÏ ê,ØWÚ�
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(d) If any question shall arise at any meeting of the

Board as to the materiality of the interest of a

Director (other than the chairman of the meeting)

or as to the entitlement of any Director (other than

such chairman) to vote and such question is not

resolved by his voluntarily agreeing to abstain from

voting, such question shall be referred to the

chairman of the meeting and his ruling in relation

to such other Director shall be final and conclusive

except in a case where the nature or extent of the

interest of the Director concerned as known to such

Director has not been fairly disclosed to the Board.

If any question as aforesaid shall arise in respect of

the chairman of the meeting such question shall be

decided by a resolution of the Board (for which

purpose such chairman shall not vote thereon) and

such resolution shall be final and conclusive except

in a case where the nature or extent of the interest

of such chairman as known to such chairman has

not been fairly disclosed to the Board.”

6. To transact any other business.

By Order of the Board

Kam Ying Fai

Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 30th September, 2004
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Notes:

1. Any member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the

Meeting is entitled to appoint one or more separate proxies to attend

and vote instead of him. A proxy need not be a member of the

Company.

2. To be valid, a form of proxy in the prescribed form together with the

power of attorney or other authority (if any) under which it is signed

(or a notarially certified copy thereof) must be deposited at the

Company’s principal office in Hong Kong at Rooms 1405-06, Harbour

Centre, 25 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong not less than 48

hours before the time fixed for holding the Meeting or any adjourned

Meeting.

3. Further information regarding the above resolution no. 2 in respect

of the biographical details of Mr. Shi Jian Hui and Ms. To Sin Ning,

the Directors who offer themselves for re-election, is provided in the

section headed “Biographical Information of Directors and Senior

Management” in the Company’s 2004 Annual Report.

4. A circular setting out further information regarding the above

resolutions nos. 4A, 4B, 4C and 5 will be despatched to the members

of the Company together with the Company’s 2004 Annual Report.
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